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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH 4c FAMILIES

Lorl A. Wtiver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Commissioner 603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

Fax: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Marie Noonan

Director

March 14. 2025

Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Court Appointed
Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. (VC#156690), Manchester, NH, for the continued
provision of statewide training program and educational opportunities for Court Appointed Special
Advocates and Guardians ad Litem, by increasing the price limitation by $62,008 from $170,752
to $232,760 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective
July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 31, 2019, item ##26,
amended on April 21, 2021, item #14, and most recently amended on March 8, 2023, item #12.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor oversees a
statewide network of volunteers and programs working with Court Appointed Special Advocates
and Guardians ad Litem for children involved with the child welfare system. The Contractor's
members are the only individuals able to provide New Hampshire specific training needed by
court appointed special advocates and guardian ad litem volunteering on a statewide basis. No
other program in New Hampshire provides one-on-one advocacy services for abused and
neglected children.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide a statewide training program and
educational opportunities for Court Appointed Special Advocates and Guardians ad Litem in New
Hampshire. These trainings include "Termination of Parental Rights - Getting to Adoption,"
"Permanency Training," "Legal Issues," "Advanced Court Report Writing," and "Department of
Education Training".

The Contractor has approximately 600 active volunteers and offers training to
approximately 120 volunteers annually.
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The Court Appointed Special Advocate volunteers are appointed by judges to advocate
for the best interests of children who have experienced abuse or neglect. Volunteers remain
involved with children until the case is closed and the child is placed in a safe, permanent home.
For many children who experience abuse or neglect, their court appointed special advocate
volunteer will be the only constant adult presence in their lives. Continued training and
educational programs are necessary for individuals who represent these children's best interest
through the arduous process of the legal and social services systems.

The Department will monitor sen/ices by reviewing;

•  The number of CASA staff and volunteers who receive training:

•  The total number of hours of training provided; and

•  Training evaluation results.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will not be trained
advocates to represent the interests of abused or neglected children as they navigate legal and
social service systems. Additionally, the Department may not be able to continue to meet Title IV-
E functional training requirements, which include pre-service and tri-service training, as well as
on-going educational opportunities to court appointed special advocates.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.658 FAIN #2401NHFOST

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver ^
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-42-421010-29600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CHILD PROTECTION. ORG'L LEARNING & QUALITY IMPRVMT
State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Revised

Budget

2020 067-500557 Provider Training Education Contract 42106015 $  28.372 $ $ 28.372

2021 067-500557 Provider Training Education Contract 42106015 $  28.372 $ $ 28,372

2022 067-500557 Provider Training Education Contract 42106015 $  26,065 $ $ 26.065

2023 067-500557 Provider Training Education Contract 42106015 $  26,065 $ $ 26.065

Subtotal $ 108,874 $ $ 108,874

05-95-42-421010-32200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,

Siaie

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Revised

Budget

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42102002 $  30,939 $ 30.939

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42102002 $  30,939 $ 30.939

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42102002 $ $  31,004 $ 31,004

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42102002 $ $  31.004 $ 31,004

Subtotal $  61,878 $  62,008 $123,886

I  Totall $ 170,7521 $ 62.0081 $232,7601
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment UZ

This Amendment to the Court Appointed Special Advocates Training Partnership contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019 (Item #26), as amended on April 21, 2021 (Item #14), as amended on March 8, 2023
(Item #12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract rnay be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$232,760

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3., to read:

3. The Contractor agrees to provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance
with funding requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount equal to or
greater than $111.308 for each State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2026 & 2027.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 7, Subsection 7.1., to
read:

7.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, in accordance with the approved budget line items specified
in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-8 Budget Amendment #3.

5. Add Exhibit B-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-8, Budget Sheet - Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Court Appointed Special Advocates of
New Hampshire, inc. A-S-1.3 Contractorlnitials

2/7/2025
SS-2020-DCYF-05-COURT-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/11/2025

^OeeuSigntd by:

Auric Ni>6\ama.
— ?FCr.B7?4C31F4QP

Date Name: Mane Noonan

Title: DCYF Di rector

2/7/2025

Date Name: Marcia sink

President/CEO

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.

^OocuSign^b by;

AUTOA
■ OABS3AF44B4B4Ag

Court Appointed Special Advocates of
New Hampshire, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-DCYF-05-COURT-01-A03 Page 2 of 3
V. 7,12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

CDocuSigrwtl by:
74a71i1M.lft1weO.

Date Name: Robyn cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Court Appointed Special Advocates of
New Hampshire, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020.DCYF-05-COURT-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
V. 7,12.23
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Exhibit B-7, Amendment #3, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Court Appointed Special Advocates of Nevv Hampshire, Inc
Budget Request for: CASA Training Partnership

Budget Period July 1, 2025-June 30. 2026
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)0

Line Item
Program Cost -

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost - Contractor Share/

Match v.-

1. Salary & Wages $24,886 $110,365
2. Fringe Benefits $5,054 - - $22,412
3. Consultants $0 ■  $0
4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. .  . ■ %0 ■ '- - ;-$o
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab •  - - . $0 ■ - .$0^
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical .  $0 •  • . $0-
5.(e) Supplies Office $152 $674

6. Travel $349 .  $1,547
7. Software $0 $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $563 $2,497
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0.

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 ■  $0

9. Subreclpient Contracts $0 $0'
Total Direct Costs $31,004 = $137,495

Total Indirect Costs $0 : ' - $0

TOTAL $3l;004 r=.$137,495-

SS-2020-DCYF-05-COURT-01-A03

Contractor Initials:

Date:
2/7/2025
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Exhibit 8-8, Amendment #3, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.

Budget Request for: CASA Training Partnership

Budget Period July 1, 2026-June 30, 2027

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0

Line Item
Program Cost -

Funded by DHHS
Program Cost - Contractor Share/

• Match

1. Salary & Wages $24,886 $110,365

2. Fringe Benefits $5,054 -  . $22,412

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. -  - $0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 ■  $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical -  r $0 .  _ $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $152 $674

6. Travel $349 $1,547

7. Software $0 -  - $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $563 - - = •_ $2,497
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) T  $0" ■  $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) ■  $0 •  - $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0
Total Direct Costs $31,004 $137,495

Total Indirect Costs 1 - $0 $0

TOTAL - . $31,004 $137,495

SS-2020-DCYF-05-COURT-01-A03

/U-S
Contractor Initials;.

Date:
2/7/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL

ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on April 19, 1989. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 140761

Certificate Number: 0006653811

SI

Ik

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Michael Burns. Co-Chair of the Board hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Court Apbointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire.
Inc. .

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken electronically of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Februarv'? . 20 25 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Marcia Sink. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name,and Title of Contract Sionatorv)

is duly authorized on behalf of Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire. Inc. to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that'they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 2/7/25 i »

Signature oftlected Officer
Name: Michael Burns

Title: Co-Chair of the Board

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATE (MM/Domnnr)

7/1/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, LLC
11 Concord St
Nashua NH 03064

NAMEf*^^ Jessica Archambault
E«i: 603-882-2766 noI: 603-886-4230

Ann^Fss- larchambault/aeatonberube.com
INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850

INSURED CASAOFN-01

CASA of NH, INC
PO 80X1327
Manchester NH 03105

INSURER B: AmTrust North America. Inc. 42376

INSURER C:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E ;

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1642538699 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
JJR TYPE OF INSURANCE itisa

SUBR
XQOL POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
imm>dd/yyyyi

POLICY exp
iMMfDDPrmn LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2552626 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

6AK1ACET0 RENTEO
PREMISES (Ea occurrance)

MED EXP (Any one p«r»on)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY LOC

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

$1,000,000

$ 100,000

S 5,000

$1,000,000

S 2,000,000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

PHPK2552626 7/1/2024 7/1/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddwitl

$1,000,000

BODILY INJURY {Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenil

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB863715 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000

AGGREGATE $ 2.000.000

RETENTION$ m rM%n

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?

(Mar>datory In NH)
11 yea, descnbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

VWVC3722701 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

Y/N

s

y  PER
^  STATUTE

OTH-

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIP'nON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarfct Schedule, may be attached II more apace la required)

New Hampshire Workers' Compensation Policy.
Additional Insured status applies in regards to General Liability when required by a written contract. Waiver of Subrogation applies to General Liability when
required by a written contract.
Re: Title IVE Grant - Covering operations of the Named Insured during the policy period.

State of NH Department of Health & Human Services
Division for Children, Youth & Families
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WHTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CASA
Court Appointed Special Advocates

FOR CHILDREN

New Hampshire

MISSION STATEMENT

CASA recruits, trains and supervises volunteers to serve as
advocates for abused and neglected children

In the New Hampshire court system.



Docusign Envelope ID: C216B4C1-OB95-4B0F-AF27-73234368034E

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW lUMPSHIRE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2024
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Hession & Pare,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

62 Stark Street, Mancltester, New Ham|)shire 031(11
603-669-5477 FAX 603-669-0107

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Court Appointed Special
Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. ("CASA") (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of CASA as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government A udiling Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of CASA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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To the Board of Direclors

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about CASA's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material raisstatemenl, whether due to fraud, or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is, not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if tliere is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards^ we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of CASA's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about CASA's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.
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To the Board of Directors

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

I

We have previously audited CASA's 2023 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
November 6, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, is consistent, in ail material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report
dated November 12, 2024, on our consideration of CASA's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of CASA's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering CASA's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, NH

November 12, 2024
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As or June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals for 2023)

ASSETS

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2024 2023

Current ̂ sets

Cash and cash equivalents S  1,347,616 $  609,834 S 1,957,450 $ 3,261,655
Sponsorship receivable 32,500 - 32,500 18,235

Grants receivable 302,081 - 302,081 185,866

Pledges receivable 365,250 - 365,250 165,150

Prepaid expenses 1,785 - 1,785 5,185

Operating lease, right-of-use.asset, current 40,704 - 40,704 34,881

Total current assets 2,089,936 609,834 2,699,770 3,670,972

Noncurrent assets

Investments 3,901,896 1,129,270 5.031,166 3,045,290

Pledges receivable, net of current 67,402 - 67,402 100,753

Property and equipment, net 980,638 - 980,638 1,015,158

Operating lease, right-of-use asset, net of curren 75,477 .  - 75,477 113,573

Total honctirreiU assets 5,025,413 1,129,270 6,154,683 4,274,774

Total assets $  . 7,1 15,349 $  1,739,104 S 8,854,453 $ 7,945,746

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $  32,331 $ s 32331 $  42,711

Accrued expenses 111,119 - 111,119 108,593

Operating lease liability 42,998 - 42,998 35,379 .

Total current liabilities 186,448 - 186,448 186,683

Noncurrent liabilities

Operating lease liability, net of current 75,123 - 75,123 113,573

Total liabilities 261,571 261,571 .300,256

Commitments (see Notes)

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 6,853,778 - 6,853,778 6,236,915

With donor restrictions - 1,739,104 1,739,104 1,408,575

Total net assets 6,853,778 l,739;104 8,592,882 7,645.490

Total liabilities and net assets $  7,115,349 $  1,739,104 S  8,854,453 $ 7,945,746

See notes to financial statements.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year EndcdJunc 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2024

Public support

Contributions $  1,086,1.01 $  361,400 $  1,447,501

Government grants 1,976,014 1,976,014

Fundraising events, net ofcosls of$145,392 794,278 - 794,278

Private grants 170,149 159,258 329,407

Other income 20,427 - 20,427

Donated goods, services, and use of facilities 38,809 - 38,809

Total public support 4,085,778 520,658 4,606,436

Investment income, net of fees of $32,374 363,365 121,859 485,224

Total public support and investment income 4,449,143 642,517 5,091,660

Net assets released from restrictions

For satisfaction of program restrictions 311,988 (31 1,988) -

Total public support, investment income and

net assets released from restrictions 4,761,131 330,529 5,091,660

Expenses

Program services 3,534,232 - 3,534,232

Supporting activities

Management and general 270,206 - 270,206

Fundraising 339,'830 - 339,830

Total expenses 4,144,268 4,144,268

Increase in net assets 616,863 330,529 947,392

Net assets, beginning of year 6,236,915 1,408,575 7,645,490
\

Net assets, end of year $ 6,853,778 $  1,739,104 $ 8,592,882

See notes to financial statements.
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GOURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30,2023

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2023

Public support

Contributions $  ,782,880 $  271,776 $  1,054,656

Government grants 1,836,869 1,836,869

Fundraising events, net of costs ofS 136,224 691,936 - 691,936

Private grants 257,630 75,000 332,630

Other income 29,895 - 29,895

Donated goods, services and use of facilities 80,351 - 80,351

Total public support 3,679,561 346,776 4,026,337

Investment income, net of fees of $8,586 67,1 17 1 13,246 180,363

Total public support and investment income 3,746,678 460,022 4,206,700

Net assets released from restrictions

For satisfaction of program restrictions 309,662 (309,662) -

Total public support, investment income and

net assets released froiii restrictions 4,056,340 150,360 4,206,700

Expenses
Program services 3,317,024 - 3,317,024

Supporting activities

Management and general 262,231 - 262,231

Fundraising 334,638 - 334,638

Total expenses 3,913,893 3,913,893

Increase in net assets 142,447 150,360 292,807

Net assets, beginning of year 6,094,468 1,258,215 7,352,683

Net assets, end of year $ 6,236,915 $  1,408,575 $ 7,645,490

See notes to financial statements.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For.the Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals for 2023)

Program Management

Services and General Fundreising 2024 2023

Payroll

Salaries and wages $2,280,770 S  174,374 S  219,305 $2,674,449 $2,479,414

Payroll (axes 174,879 13,370 16,815 205,064 195,677

Benefits 281,052 21,488 .  27,024 329,564 244,614

Total payroll 2,736,701 209,232 263,144 3,209,077 2,919,705

Other

Advertising 197,153 15,073 18,957 231,183 175,905

Professional fees and contract labor 1 15,467 8,828 11,103 135,398 232,083

Depreciation 62,454 4,775 6,005 73,234 84,084

GITlce expense 62,167 4,753 5,978 72,898 58,20!

Lease expense 57,774 4,417 5,555 67,746 66,323

Travel 41,153 3,146 3,957 48,256 44,51!

Service contracts 40.439 3.092 3,888 47,419 57.851

Insurance 36,001 2,752 3,462 42,215 42,057

Bad debt expense 30,701 2,347 2,952 36,000 44,418

Telephone 28,794 2,201 2,769 33,764 29,431

Meals and entertainment 26,084 1,994 2,508 1 30,586 14,191

Printing 20,830 1,593 2,003 24,42(> 8,212

Dues, memberships and subscriptions 16,317 1,248 1,569 19,134 20,155

Repairs and maintenance 14,954 1,143 1,438 17,535 14.344

Postage 13,374 1,023 1,286 15,683 15,193

Utilities 10,264 785 987 12,036 11;566

Provision for uncollectible accounts 10,234 782 984 12,000 -

Gifts and promotions 7,523 575 723 8,821 5,578

Conferences and meetings 4,233 324 407 4,964 4,016

Training 1,615 123 155 1,893 66,069

Total other 797,531 60,974 76,686 ,935,191 994,188

Total expenses- $3,534,232 $  270,206 :$ 339,830 $4,144,268 :$3.913.893

Sec notes to financial statements.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30,2024

(with comparative totals for 2023)

Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Net realized and unrealized (gains) on investments

(Increase) in sponsorships receivable

(Increase) in grants receivable

(Increase) in pledges receivable

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses

(Decrease) incre^e in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Increase in operating lease liability

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of'investments

Purchase of investments

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and.cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end.ofyear

2024 2023

S  947,392 $  292,807

73,234 84,084

(319,612) (68,622)

(14,265) (8,210)

(116,215) (1 1,632)

(166,749) (41,205)

3,400 (5,185)

(7,854) 12,543

1,442 498

400,773 255,078

1,904,596 255,809

(3,570,860) (934,128)

(38,714) (42,302)

(1,704,978) (720,621)

(134,205) (465,543)

331,655 3,727,198

$ 1,957,450 $ 3,261,655

See notes to financial statements.



Docusign Envelope ID; C216B4C1-0B95-4B0F-AF27-73234368034E

-9-

COURT APPOINTED SPECUL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. ("CASA") is a non
stock, non-profit corporation organized in New Hampshire. CASA's primary service
is training volunteers in New Hampshire to advocate for abused and neglected
children in the court system. The major sources of revenue are government grant
income and contributions.

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies

CASA prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for
not-for-profit entities. The significant accounting and reporting policies used by
CASA are described subsequently to enhance the usefulness and understandability of
the financial statements.

Comparative financial information

The financial statements of CASA include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total. Such information does not include sufficient detail
to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with CASA's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Use of estimates and assumptions

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues and expenses.
Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses

Effective July 1, 2023, CASA adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments -
Credit Losses. CASA measures a financial asset at an amortized cost basis at the net

amount expected to be collected. Thus, the Statement of Activities reflects the
measurement of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as the
expected increases or decreases of expected credit losses that have taken place during
the period.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The adoption of ASU 2016-13 did not have an impact on CASA's financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows. Management has determined based on historical
collection experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections that no allowance for credit loss is necessary.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, CASA considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash
equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2024. Excess cash is
deposited into a sweep account and earns interest on a daily basis. Temporary cash
investments held in the investment portfolio are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.

Sponsorships receivable

Sponsorships receivable consist of amounts due from sponsors for events that have
already occurred, but for which amounts have not yet been paid. CASA establishes
its allowance for uncollectible accounts based on prior collection experience. It is
CASA's policy to write off uncollectible accounts receivable when management
determines the receivable will not be collected. Management does consider a variety
of factors, including risk characteristics of the selected accounts, number of days
outstanding, and current economic conditions.

Grants receivable

Grants receivable are recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts, or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants.

Pledges receivable

CASA has launched a capital campaign to generate funds to expand their capacity to
meet the emergency faced by our children today from the impact of the opioid
epidemic. The campaign was designed to solicit pledges to be paid over time (up to
5 years). Pledges are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions due to the purpose
and/or implied time restrictions. The contributions are recorded as revenue at the time
the pledges are made. When the purpose and/or time restrictions are met, restrictions
are released, and the amounts are recorded on the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSfflRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments

CASA carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values based upon quoted market prices. Unrealized and realized gains and losses are
included with investment income in the accompanying statement of activities and
changes in net assets. Purchased and gifted securities are recorded at fair value on the
date of the acquisition or gift date, net of any brokerage fees. CASA's investments do
not have a significant concentration of credit risk within any industry, geographic
location, or specific location.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of donated assets, at fair
value. Items with an individual or aggregate cost of less than $1,000 are expensed in
the year of purchase. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as
incurred.

The provision for depreciation is made using the straight-line method by annual
charges calculated to absorb the costs over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Furniture, equipment and software 3-5 years

Leases

CASA is a lessee in several noncancellable leases for office space. CASA determines
if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at inception of a contract and when
the terms of an existing contract are changed. CASA recognizes a lease liability and
a right-of-use (ROU) asset at the commencement date of the lease. The lease liability
is initially and subsequently recognized based on the present value of its future lease
payments. Variable payments are included in the future lease payments when those
variable payments depend on an index or a rate. CASA generally does not have access
to the rate implicit in the lease and, therefore, CASA utilizes a risk-free rate as the
discount rate at the lease commencement date for all classes of underlying assets. The
ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the amount of the
remeasured lease liability (i.e., present value of the remaining lease payments), plus
unamortized initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments,
less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received, and any impairment
recognized. Lease cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CASA has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less

at lease commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset
that CASA is reasonably certain to exercise. CASA recognizes lease costs associated
with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Net assets

The financial statements report net assets based upon the existence or absence of
restrictions placed by its donors, as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets without donor'

restrictions are resources available to support operations. The only
limits on the use of these net assets are the broad limits resulting from
the nature of CASA, the environment in which it operates, the purposes
specified in its corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt
status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements with
creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets with donor restrictions

are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular
purpose or in a particular future period. Some donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, and the restriction will expire when
the resources are used in accordance with the donor's instructions or

when the stipulated time has passed. Other donor-imposed restrictions
are perpetual in nature; CASA must continue to use the resources in
accordance with the donor's restrictions.

Revenue recognition.

Contributions and private grants
Contributions and private grants are recognized when cash, securities or other assets,
an unconditional promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been substantially met.



Docusign Envelope ID: C216B4C1-0B95-4B0F-AF27-73234368034E

-13-

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributions and private grants are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future periods or for
specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an implied restriction
to be used in the year payment is due, and therefore, are reported as restricted until
the payment is due, unless the contribution is clearly intended to support activities of
the current fiscal year. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of

activities. Any donor-restricted contribution that is received in the same year that the
restriction is met is recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.

Government grants
Government grants are recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts, or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants.

Fundraising events
Revenue from fundraising events is recognized when the performance obligation of
providing the event is met. The performance obligation of conducting the event is
simultaneously received and consumed by the attendees; therefore, the revenue is
recognized when the event occurs. Upon receipt of a prepayment from a registrant,
CASA recognizes a contract liability in the amount of the prepayment for its
performance obligation to provide the event in the future. Due to the nature and timing
of the performance and/or transfer of services, certain contract liabilities at June 30
of each year are recognized in the following year.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Donated goods and services

A significant portion of CASA's functions are conducted by unpaid officers, Board
members, and volunteers. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the
accompanying financial statements since it does not meet the criteria necessary for
recognition under U.S. GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only
if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are
provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Donated goods, services, and use of facilities consisted of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Consulting services $ 24,575 $ 66,650

Office space 7,800 7,800

Printing 5,584 -

Advertising - 3,118

Other 850 2,783

Total $ 38,809 $ 80,351

CASA recognized donated goods, services, and use of facilities within public support
for consulting services, office space, printing, advertising and other. Unless otherwise
noted, donated goods, services and use of facilities did not have donor-imposed
restrictions.

Donated goods, services and use of facilities were used toward program, fundraising
events, and general and administrative costs. Donated professional services are
recorded at the respective fair values of the services received. Donated goods are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when placed in service
or distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use
of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the
amount is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date
of the gift, and the expense is reported over the term of use.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSfflRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the accompanying statement of activities. The statement of
functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program services, supporting
activities, and fundraising based on benefits received. Expenses that can be identified
with a specific program, supporting service, or fundraising event are charged directly
to the program, supporting service, and fundraising event. Expenses which apply to
more than one functional category, such as time and effort, have been allocated based
on estimates made by management.

Advertising costs

CASA charges advertising costs to operating expenses as incurred.

Financial instruments and credit risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash and cash equivalents with
fmancial institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may
exceed insured limits or include uninsured investments. To date, no losses have been
experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial
portions of the outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities
supportive of CASA's mission.

Income taxes

CASA is a not-for-profit organization exempt from income tax under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is classified as other than a private
foundation. However, certain unrelated business income is subject to federal taxation.
For the year ended June 30, 2024, there was no liability for tax on unrelated business
income. Accordingly, no provision for federal income tax has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

CASA is no longer subject to income tax examinations by U.S. Federal or State tax
authorities for tax years before 2020.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Reclassifications

Certain balances in the prior year's financial statements may have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year's
financial statements. These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net assets.

Note 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use within one year of June 30 are:

2024 2023

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,957,450 $ 3,261,655
Investments 5,031,166 3,045,290
Sponsorship receivable 32,500 18,235
Grants receivable 302,081 185,866
Pledges receivable 453,250 291,400

Total financial assets 7,776,447 6,802,446

Less financial assets held to meet donor-imposed
restrictions:

Puipose-restricted net assets (31,714) (109,894)
Donor-restricted endowment funds (1,129,140) (1,007,281)

Less financial assets not available within one year:
Pledges receivable (88,000) (126,250)

Amount available for general expenditures within
one year S 6.527.593 $ 5.559.021

CASA regularly monitors liquidity required to meet operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its
available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year, CASA operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting
sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures hot covered by donor-restricted
resources.

CASA's endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from

donor-restricted endowments is available for general use and could be made available
if necessary. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general
expenditure.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in CASA'S principal or most advantageous market
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires CASA to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that CASA has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices
such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect CASA's own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing an asset or liability.

In many cases, a valuation technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from
multiple levels of the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant input
determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.

Investments measured at fair value at June 30 are summarized below:

Fair

June 30,2024 Value ("Level n ("Level 21 ("Level 31

Valued on a recurring basis
$Investment cash $  169,655 $  169,655 $

U.S. equities 2,239,418 2,239,418 -

International equities 371,008 371,008 -

Fixed income 1,930,631 1,930,631 -

Other investments 223,278 223,278 1

Real estate 97.176 97.176 -

Total investments $5,031,166 S "5.031.166 S ,  ,
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (concluded)

Fair

June 30, 2023 Value fLevel n fLevel 21 CLevel 3)

Valued on a recurring basis
Investment cash $  103,009 $  103,009 $ $

U.S. equities 721,966 721,966 ■- -

International equities 264,686 264,686 - -

Fixed income 1,710,993 1,710,993 - -

Other investrnents 244.636 244.636 _ -

Total investments $ 3,045,290 s $

Fair values of Level 1 investments are determined by reference to quoted market
prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions;

Note 5. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Pledges receivable were as follows at June 30:

Promises to give expected to be collected in
Less than one year
One to five years

Less discount to present value
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges

Net pledges receivable

2024 2023

$ 365,250 $ 165,150
88,000 126,250

453,250 291,400

(6,027) (10,926)
(14,571) (14,571)

S 432,652 $ 265,903

Pledges receivables are reported at their fair value, which is estimated as the present
value of expected future cash inflows on a non-recurring basis. At June 30, 2024, a
discount rate of 3% was Considered to determine net present value. As discussed in
Note 4, the valuation technique used by CASA is a level 3 measure because there are
no observable market transactions.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSfflRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Properly and equipment are stated at cost and were as follows at June 30:

Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and software

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

2024

$ 1,428,105
263,085

1,691,190
710,552

$ 980,638

2023

$ 1,418,855
279,916

1,698,771

683,613

$ 1,015,158

Note 7. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes or periods
at June 30:

2024 2023

Time

Portion of perpetual endowment funds subject to
time restriction under the Uniform Prudent

Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) S  444,648 S  322,789

Pledges receivable 453,250 291,400

Fiscal year 2025 125,000 -

Restricted for:

Technology ,15,831 -

Building.repairs 10,000 -

CRM system 5,753 25,506

Training and community relations - 62,068

Language bank - 21,340

Generator 130 980

Endowment restricted in perpetuity 684,492 684,492

Total $ 1,739,104 $ 1,408,575
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS

CASA adheres to the Other Presentation Matters section of the Presentation of

Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Organizations in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. U.S. GAAP provides guidance on the net asset classification of donor-
restricted endowment fiinds for a non-profit organization that is subject to an enacted
version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).
U.S. GAAP also requires additional disclosures about an organization's endowrnent
funds (both donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment
funds), whether or not the organization is subject to UPMIFA.

The State of New Hampshire enacted UPMIFA effective July 1, 2008, the provisions
of which apply to endowment funds existing on or established after that dale. CASA
adopted these provisions for the year ended June 30, 2009.

CASA's endowment is comprised of five named funds and includes donor-restricted
endowment funds. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment
tiinds, including any funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors of CASA has interpreted UPMIFA as allowing CASA to
appropriate for expenditure or accumulate as much of an endowment fund as CASA
determines to be prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which the
endowment fund is established, subject to the intent of the donor as expressed in the
gift instrument.

The original gift is defined by CASA as (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
dohof-restricted endowment, (b) the original value of any subsequent gifts to donor-
restricted endowment, and (c) accumulations to donor-restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies

CASA has adopted an investment policy, approved by the Board of Directors, to
create a.balanced portfolio among several asset classes managing moderate levels of
retum with moderate levels of risk, while exceeding long-term inflation. Given
CASA has no immediate intention of appropriating any assets for expenditure, there
is currently no spending policy in place for the year ended June 30, 2024. However,
management is currently in the process of establishing a spending policy that will be
in accordance with UPMIFA. During this process, CASA will consider the following
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (continued)

factors in making a detennination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the
purposes of the dortor-restricled endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions,
(4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from
income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of CASA and (7) the
investment policies of CASA.

Endowment net assets composition by type of fund were as follows:

^ Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

June 30,2024

Donor-restricted endowment

funds S ; 1.129.270 -li 1.129.270

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

June 30,2023

Donor-restricted endowment

funds S : $ 1.007.411 $ 1.007.411
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (continued)

Endowment net assets were as follows:

June 30,2024

Investments, beginning
of year

Net investment income

Unrealized gain
Realized gain

Total investment income

Investments, end of year

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

13,094

74,559

34.206

121.859

Total

$ 1,007,411 $ 1,007,411

13,094

74,559

34.206

121.859

June 30, 2023

Investments, beginning
of year

Net investment income

Unrealized gain
Realized loss

Total investment income

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

9,120

109,221

(5.105)

113.236

Total

$  894,175 $ 894,175

9,120

109,221

(5.105)

113.236

Investments, end of year % 1.007.411 $ 1.007.411
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8, ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (concluded)

In a prior year, CASA created a donor-restricted endowment fund named in memory
of one of CASA's strongest supporters, Mr. John Zahr. While the endownient
principal will be pennanently invested, the income from the endowment may be used
to support the general operations of CASA, unless otherwise stated by the donor.
Through the donor-restricted endowment fund, donors who feel compelled to leave a
legacy gift or otherwise invest in CASA's future will now have that opportunity.

Note 9. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

CASA has operating lease agreements for various office spaces in Laconia, Dover
Claremont, Berlin, and Keene, New Hampshire. In July 2020, CASA entered into a
5-year operating lease agreement in Dover expiring June 2025 with monthly
payments of $454 for base rent and utility costs of $630 and $588 during 2024 and
2023, respectively. In November 2020, CASA entered into a 5-year operating lease
agreement in Keene expiring October 2025 with monthly payments of $940,
increased each year by 2%. In May 2023, CASA entered into a 5-year operating lease
agreement in Laconia expiring April 2028 with monthly payments of $1,957,
increased each year by 3%. CASA has extended a one-year operating lease agreement
until April 2025 in Claremont with monthly payments of $455. The operating lease
agreement for Berlin automatically renews each year at $500 per month.

Noncash investing and financial activities related to these operating leases includes a
lease asset obtained in exchange for lease liabilities of $168,010.

There is currently no rent requirement other than utilities for CASA's Colebrook
office. The estimated fair value of the monthly rental for this space is $7,800.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (concluded)

Future payments due under the operating leases are as follows:

Year ending

June 30. Amount

2025 $ 45,819

2026 28,950

2027 25,790

2028 22,026

Total lease payments 122,585

Imputed interest (4,464)

Present value of lease

liability $ 118,121

Total lease costs were as follows at June 30:

2024 2023

Operating lease cost $ 46,386 $ 45,466

Short-term lease cost 6,000 6,000

Variable lease cost 7,560 7,056

Donated facility cost 7,800 7,800

S 67,746 $ 66,322

Note 10. RETIREMENT PLAN

CASA has a defined contribution plan covering all eligible employees. During the
year ended June 30, 2024, CASA approved plan contributions up to 2% of eligible
employees' salary. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, CASA contributed
$53,001 and $26,492, respectively.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
V  OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CASA has entered into grant agreements that are recognized when qualifying costs
are incurred for cost-reimbursement grants or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Revenue from government agencies is subject to review by
grantor agencies. The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under
the terms of the grants or reductions of future grant awards.

Note 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

CASA has purchased consulting services from a partnership owned by a family
member of CASA's officer. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, there
was $47,548 and $125,700 in consulting expenses, of which $24,575 and $66,650
was donated, respectively.

Note 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

CASA has evaluated subsequent events through November 12, 2024, the date which
the financial statements were available to be issued and has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date. No subsequent events were identified that would require
disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.
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CAROLINE K. DELANEY, ESQ.

LEGAL EXPERIENCE

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (CASA-NH) Manchester, NH
Staff Counsel September 2016-Present
Act as in-house staff counsel for CASA-NH staff and volunteers. Provide initial and on-going service

training for staff and volunteers on the legal process in Abuse/Neglect (RSA 169-C), Termination of
Parental Rights {RSA 170-C) and Mediated Adoption (RSA 170-B: 14) proceedings. Represent CASA-NH
in court filing appropriate motions and memos of law. Review and edit reports submitted to Court by
CASA-GAL's and prepare CASA-GAL's to testify as witnesses in court proceedings. Assist the
President/CEO with personnel and other management issues including contract review.

New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration (DRA) Concord, NH
Revenue Counsel March 2014 - September 2016

Served as general counsel to the DRA. Advised DRA Commissioner and administration on tax matters,
and personnel issues. Managed all DRA litigation and represented DRA in administrative hearings.
Managed DRA's administrative rule making process including testifying before legislative committees.
Drafted and reviewed business contracts. Conducted department wide trainings.

Morrison Mahoney LLP Manchester, NH
Associate January 2009 - February 2014

Handled all aspects of varied insurance defense litigation including professional liability, premises
liability and worker's compensation.cases. Regularly advised insurance companies in the areas of New
Hampshire insurance coverage and worker's compensation law.

Wiggin & Nourle, P.A. Manchester, NH
Associate Sept. 2006 — Oct. 2008

Attorney in Insurance Defense Practice Group. Attended hearings, mediations, depositions
and drafted pleadings.

Law Office of John B. Schulte Manchester, NH

Staff Litigation Counsel March 1998 - Sept. 2004
Served as in-house trial attorney for Liberty Mutual Insurance Company. Represented Liberty Mutual
insureds in automobile and premises liability cases in all state courts. Represented employers at the
New Hampshire Department of Labor in worker's compensation hearings and appeals.

EDUCATION

Northeastern University School of Law

J.D. 1997

College of the Holy Cross

B.A. English 1991
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OTHER EXPERIENCE

Community Family Life Services Washington, D.C.
Grant Administrator/Casemanager/Outreach Coordinator Aug. 1992 - May 1994

Administered Department of Housing and Urban Development grant. Supervised six grant
casemanagers and coordinated referrals. Provided case management to homeless families living in
CFLS' transitional housing program working towards achieving self-sufficiency. Provided case
management to families living in Washington D.C. city shelters.

The Jesuit Volunteer Corp Washington, D.C.
Emergency Services Coordinator/ Advocate for the Elderiy Aug. 1991 - June 1992
Served low income families and seniors volunteering for two Washington D.C. social service agencies,

The Northwest Settlement House and Community Advocacy and Referral for the Elderly ("C.A.R.E.").

MEMBERSHIPS

New Hampshire Bar Association

New Hampshire Women's Bar Association
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Bernadette M. Plante

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a challenging full or part time position withjn the educational, childcare, or social services
field that will fully utilize my diverse knowledge, education, and experience.

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Guardian Ad Litem, Court Appointed Special Advocate
■  Excellent knowledge of Juvenile Court/Child Wetfere

System.

■ Assisted in development of organizational policies for
Guardian Ad Utems & Staff.

• Represented organization at both state and local level.

• Supervision and Training of professional development
of staff.

• Member of the Senior Management Team.

■ Up-to-date on current industry trends with staff
recruiting and development experience.

Parent Child Mediation, City of Nashua, NH

Proven track record for providing quality dient
assessment, counseling, and referrals.

Experience in networking with local/state agencies
and grant writing.

Ability to work productively both independently or as a
cooperative team member.

Solid background in designing/implementing new
behavioral and vocational programs

WORK HISTORY

CASA (COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATE) OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (2001 - Present)
Senior CASA Supervisor (2008-Present)

■  Court Diversion Program (2007-2009)
•  Supervised Staff Supervisors in Colebrook, Berlin, Plymouth, Manchester and

Nashua District and Family Courts to ensure effective service delivery to
abused and neglected children.

■  Acted as a liaison to all North Country, Lakes Region, Manchester and Nashua
local offices of the Division of Children, Young and Families (DCYF).

■  Developed and provided training standards for both Staff, Volunteers and
Guardian Ad Litems.

■  Conducted performance evaluations of Staff.
■  Valuable Professional of the Senior Management Team.

Supervisor of Guardian Ad Litems (2001-2008)
■  Recruited, screened, trained and supervised CASA Guardian Ad LItem

Volunteers, providing 40 hour intensive training.
■  Responsible for matching case's to appropriate Volunteer (all cases are abuse

and neglect petitions filed through either District or Family Court).
■  Co-managed all cases with volunteer, maintaining monthly supervision data in

CASA database, provided data quarterly, or as needed, to Executive Director
■  Ensured all Court Reports prepared by CASA/GAL are typed, edited,

reproduced and delivered with the statutory time frames to court and all
relevant parties.

■  Acted as a liaison to Court Personnel.
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NASHUA PASTORAL CARE CENTER INC, Nashua, NH (1996 -2001)
Emeraencv Assistance Outreach Director (1998 - 2001)

■  Continuously handled a high-risk caseload, managed Annual Grants, and prepared
statistical information for the United Way.

•  Assisted in resume writing and preparation for non-skiiied working population.
•  Developed job opportunities for professional, skilled, and non-skilled clientele.
•  Represented organization as a public speaker at public relations events and fund

raisers.

■  Managed 200 volunteers and coordinated annual Christmas Program, which served
over 680 families.

Case Manager(1996 - 1998)
■  Managed high-risk caseload working with women in recovery from addictions.
•  Co-facilitated bi-weekly support group for women to empower and assist with integration

into the community.
■  Co-facilitated weekly parenting group for women in recovery.
■  Facilitated educational, housing, and individual plans to become non-recipients of

welfare.

■  Developed close working relationships with educational personnel from local colleges, the
City, and Welfare Department.

■  Maintained up-to-date on local and state changes pertaining to welfare reform.

BIG BROTHERS/BIG SISTERS OF GREATER NASHUA, Nashua, NH (1996 - 1997)
Case Worker

Handled caseload of 25 families and recruited/trained volunteers.
Assisted in major fundraising projects and writing press releases.
Provided sexual abuse prevention training to children, parents, and volunteers.
Interviewed and screened adults and children for program eligibility.
Aided in providing support groups for parents and volunteers, addressing parenting
issues of elementary aged children to teenagers.
Researched potential grant possibilities and represented organization at public speaking
engagements.

EDUCATION

MELTON MOWBRY COLLEGE, Leicester, England
B.S. Degree Equivalent in Social Work & Child Welfare with additional post graduate study.

c CONTINUING EDUCATION

NH Attorney General's Task Force Conference on Child
Abuse & Neglect
PSNH Conference on Electric Utility Service for Low-income
Families

Nurturing Families through Recovery, Coalition on Addiction,
Pregnancy & Parenting
Intake & Assessment; Division of Children, Youth & Families
Working with Chronically Mentally III Patients, Manchester
Mental Health

Juvenile Court Process; Div of Children, Youth & Families
Working with Sexually Abused Children; Division of Children,
Youth & Families

Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, Rivier College, Nashua, NH
Dynamics of Child Abuse and Neglect within
the Family; Division of Children, Youth &
Families

Cultural Awareness, Rivier College, Nashua, NH
Assessment & Case Planning, Big Brothers/Big Sisters of
America

Physical & Psychological Adolescent Changes
Mediating Divorce, Child Parent Mediation
Dealing with Domestic Violence
Community Conference; Division of Children, Youth &
Families

REFERENCES ARE AVAILABLE ON REQUEST
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Diane M. Valladares

EXPERIENCE

CASA of NH, Manchester, NH
November 2002 - Present

Training and Recruitment Coordinator for statewide non-profit volunteer guardian ad litem
program, representing abused and neglected children in the NH court system. Recruit, screen
and interview candidates to serve child clients, set training schedule, coordinate speakers.
Increased retention of volunteers by 100% during my first year through monthly newsletters
and educational conferences for volunteers. Daily tasks include maintenance of two volunteer
databases (COMET and Gift Maker Pro), application processing, follow-up of volunteer
inquiries, interview and class scheduling. Monthly budget and application reports for staff
and Board, as well as press releases. Publish yearly calendar and business directory, as well
as recruitment and retention materials. Maintain and update training manual for volunteers.
Plan and execute two major volunteer events per year.

WHITNEY LAW OFFICES, Nashua, NH

January 2001 -June 2002
Paralegal Assistant for private law practice specializing in family, real estate, personal injury,
bankruptcy and criminal law. Responsibilities included screening clients, maintaining
calendar, case maintenance, research, interaction with court officers, client correspondence,
billing, handling phones and mail.

DESIGNWARES, 206 Main Street, Nashua, NH, 03060
August 2000 - Present
Sales Consultant for upscale retail artisan boutique. Responsibilities include customer
service inventory control, purchasing, maintaining mailing list database, merchandising
Currently work almost exclusively on maintaining the customer database for sales
promotions.

BICENTENNIAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Nashua, NH
September 1996 -June 1999
Educator, Grade 4. Created and implemented educational plans for heterogeneously grouped,
inclusionary classes utilizing reading and writing workshop approach to integrated language
arts, hands-on science and mathematics, and axlass meeting approach to solving issues and
problems. Served as PTO liaison.

CHARLOTTE AVENUE / BICENTENNIAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Nashua, NH
September 1991 - January 1996
Special Education Paraprofessional Modified assignments and gave academic support within
the classroom to students on individual education plans at the fifth and sixth grade level.
Provided one-on-one, small group and whole class instruction. Administered various
assessments (Woodcock-Johnson, K-TEA, TOWL) to individual students.
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EDUCATION: Rivier College, Nashua, NH, 1996 B.A. Elementary Education
The Berkeley School, White Plains, NY - 1979, Secretarial Diploma

PROFESSIONAL Nashua College Club, Vice President
AFFILIATIONS: CASA of NH - Guardian ad Litem

NH Notary Public and Justice of the Peace

REFERENCES: Excellent references available on request.
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Jonelle Gaffne^

Objective To obtain full time employment that would allow me the opportunity to continue to work with families
and children In the social service spectrum by helping to assist in providing services to families in
need.

Education Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester, New Hampshire
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
Minor In Sociology, 2000-2004
Graduated Cum Laude

2002-2004: Treasurer of the National Honor Society for Psychology (PSI CHI)

Professional Experience

CASA of NH, Manchester, NH
(October 2009 to Present)
CASA Guardian Ad Litem Supervisor-Program Director

Responsible for the recruitment, training, and on-going supervision of volunteer guardian ad litems assigned to
abused and neglected children in the court system.

Devereux Florida, Orlando, FL

(October 2008-September 2009)
Family Case Manager-Specialized Medical Unit

•  Identified needs of and provided direct care services to families in meeting the specialized needs of medically involved
or medically fragile children within the child welfare system

• Developed, implemented, and monitored family case plans and provided families with the necessary skills and
motivation in order to meet the goals of the case plan to ensure child safety and well-being

• Determined the need for child removal, continued services, or termination of services based upon an expert child
safety assessment

• Empowered and promoted self sufficiency of clients
• Wrote documents for the Court; including Shelter Petitions, Predisposition Reports, Judicial Reviews, Status Reports,
and Case Plans

• Provided testimony to the Court and served as a liaison between the Department of Children and Families and the
Court

• Provided clients with services, such as daycare and other referrals to community agencies for counseling and
financial assistance

• Facilitated multi-disciplinary meetings to collaborate on ideas and suggestions to help families successfully meet the
needs of their children

• Attended meetings with the legal department, foster care department, and the child protection team to make informed
decisions regarding child safety and permanency planning

• Acted as a mentor to other workers within the service center

Devereux Florida, Orlando, FL

(June 2007-October 2008) Family
Case Manager

• Provided direct care services to families where some indicators of abuse, abandonment, or neglect issues have been
identified

• Developed, implement, and monitored family case plans
• Determined the need for child removal, continued services, or termination of services based upon an expert child
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safety assessment

• Empowered and promoted self sufficiency of clients
• Wrote documents for the Court; including Shelter Petitions, Predisposition Reports, Judicial Reviews. Status Reports,
and Case Plans

• Provided testimony to the Court and served as a liaison between the Department of Children and Families and the
Court

• Provided clients with services, such as lower cost daycare and other referrals to community agencies for counseling
and financial assistance.

• Attended meetings with the legal department, foster care department, and the child protection team to make informed
decisions regarding child safety and permanency planning

Key Program, Inc., Methuen, MA
(September 2006-June 2007)
Assistant Program Supervisor

• Assisted the program supervisor in managing residential facility, including staff supervision and ensuring clients'
treatment goals and needs are being met. Monitor program organization, client files, scheduling, and general
program maintenance

• Utilized techniques from the Crisis Prevention and Intervention Institute to facilitate the de-escalation of clients who are
in crisis

• Provided twenty-four hour on call support to residential caseworkers in ensuring clients' and staffs safety
• Utilized the Situational Leadership Model in providing formal and informal supervision to direct care staff with regards

to their performance and professional development
• Facilitated client referrals, intakes, and discharge meetings

Key Program Inc., Methuen, MA
(May 2004-September 2006)
Residential Caseworker

• Supervised children (aged 12-18) in a residential setting on achieving their treatment plan goals, documenting their
stay, managing behavioral problems, implementing consequences, and helping clients develop positive social skills
and life skills

• Worked directly with families of various ethnicities and backgrounds to understand the families different needs
• CPR, First Aid, and CPI Certified
• Attended multiple trainings focusing onfamily works, juvenile justice, 51A reporting, common diagnosis

(bi-polar, multiple personality disorder, ADHD, and schizophrenia

Specialized Trainings and/or Certifications

• Certified Family Services Counselor (March 2008)
• Specific trainings as they relate to the following: Health and Information and Accountability Act (HIPAA), Code

of Ethics, Medical Neglect, Child Abuse Prevention, Early Childhood Trauma, Domestic Violence,
Supervising Visits for Sexually Abused Children, Educational Trainings, Drug Abuse, and other various
trainings as they relate to the field of child welfare.

References available upon request
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Kelly Smith JJCSW

MSW Social Work

University of Kentucky, 1990

BA Psychology
Hanover College, 1986

NH License, LICSW#1179

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

CASA. NEW HAMPSHIRE

Director of Training, March 2016-present

PRIVATE PRACTICE. CONCORD. NH

Therapist and Consultant, November 2003 - present
0  Individual and family therapy specializing in trauma, loss, and attachment with foster and adoptive children

and families

a  Curriculum development and teaching adoption concepts to pre-adoptive parents
0  Consultation to NH Court Improvement Project regarding permanency planning, best practice and Model

Court protocols
D  Clinical consultantfor a NH adoption law firm (James Bianco. Assoc.)
□  Travel with adoptive families to their adoptive child's homeland (includes China, Guatemala, Peru, Paraguay,

and Ethiopia)
□  Consultation to school districts regarding special education programming for foster and adoptive children
Q  Clinical Consultantfor NH Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA), including clinical consultation and

training to staff and volunteers
n  Clinical Consultant for Dartmouth College, Department of Psychiatry-Trauma Research Center

V

CASEY FAMILY SERVICES. CONCORD. NH
Supervisor, March 1995 - November 2003

□  Program development and clinical supervision of a post adoption program
□  Collaboration and training for professionals in the areas of attachment and trauma
□  Technical assistance to stale as well as private, non-profit organizations on program development, clinical

intervention, and permanency planning

HANNAH NEIL CENTER FOR CHILDREN. COLUMBUS. OHIO
Director, 1992-1995

D  Director of a partial hospital program within a comprehensive mental health continuum for children,
adolescents, and families.

□  Clinical supervision of 25 therapists;
□  Direct fi scal planning and management of a $2 million budget
□  Program development to meet treatment and community needs
0  Coordination, training and supervision of student interns and work study students
0  Coordinator of continued quality improvement program which included the collection and analysis of

statistical data related to peer review, quality assurance and utilization review.

Awarded Therapist of the Year by Governor Hassan and NAM!
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Contractor Name:

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Caroline Delaney Senior Staff Attomey $535.00 $87,584.38

Bernadette Melton-Plante Program Director $472.00 $84,338.80

Diane M. Valladares State Wide Recruitment Director $5,166.00 $81,095.04

Jonelle Gaffney Program Director $424.00 $75,425.22

Kelly Smith Training Director $7,277.00 $55,426.28

$13,874.00 $383,869.72
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Lorl A. Weaver

Interim Commiitsloiur

Joseph E. RIbsam, Jr.
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN YOUTH & FAMJUES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, Nil 03301-3857
603-27M4S1 I-800-8S2-3345 Ext 4451

Fait 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh$.nh.gov

/2

January 25, 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Court Appointed
Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. (CASA), (Vendor #156690), Manchester, NH for the
continued provision of a statewide training program and education opportunities for court
appointed special advocates and guardians ad lltem, by increasing the price limitation by $61,878
from $108,874 to $170,752 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2023 to June
30,2025 effective June 30, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract vras approved by Governor and Council on July 31. 2019, item #26
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on April 21, 2021, Item'14.

Funds are anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust,budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29600000 HEALTH AND Human Svcs Dept of. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES.
CHILD PROTECTION, ORG'L LEARNING & QUALITY IMPRVMT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Incr^eased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 067-

500557

Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015
$28,372 $0 $28,372

2021 067-

500557

Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015 $28,372 $0 $28,372

2022 067-

500557

Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015 $26,065 $0 $26,065

2023 067-

500557

Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015 $26,065 $0 $26,065

77ie Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and indepe/xdenct.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and this Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-95-42-421010-32200000 HEALTH AND Human Svcs Dept of, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES,

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024
102-
500731

Contracts for

Program Services
TBD

$0 $30,939 $30,939

2025
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
TBD

$0 $30,939 $30,939

Subtotal $108,874 $61,878 $170,152

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the completion
dates beyond the available renewal options and add funding. The Contractor is the only entity
able to provide the New Hampshire specific training needed by court appointed special advocates
and guardian ad litem volunteering in New Hampshire.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide a statewide training program and
education opportunities for court appointed special advocates and guardians ad litem in New
Hampshire.

Approximately 60 CASA volunteers and 150 stakeholders are trained annually.
Court Appointed Special Advocates is a statewide network of'programs working with court

appointed special advocates and guardians ad litem for children Involved with the child welfare
system. The court appointed special advocate volunteers are appointed by judges to advocate
for the best interest of children who have experienced abuse or neglect. Volunteers remain
involved with the children until the case is closed and the child is placed in a safe, permanent
home. For many children who have experienced abuse of neglect, their court appointed special
advocate volunteer w/ill be the one constant adult presence in their lives. Training and educational
programs are necessary for individuals who represent .these children's best interest through the
arduous processes of the legal and social services systems.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing::

•  The number of CASA staff and volunteers who receive training.

•  The total numbers of hours of training provided. ,

•  Training evaluation results.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the best interest of New
Hampshire children may not be properly represented, and the Department may not be able to
meet the Title IV-E functional training requirements that include pre-service and in-service
training, as well as on-going educational opportunities to court appointed special advocates.

Area served: Statesvide
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His Excellency. Governor Chnstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.658, FAIN #2301NHFOST.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support tttis program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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DocuSIgn Enveic«>e ID; C7F6AF86-19CD~4193-8737-025BDB1F^B43

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the CASA Training Partnerstiip contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and Families ("State" or
"Department") and Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire. Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019, Item #26, and as amended on April 21, 2021. Item #14, the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based.upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 3d. 2025

2.' Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$170,752

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director.

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Paragraph 3.1.1 to read:

3.1.1 An Associate's degree or Bachelor's degree;

5. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance
vyith funding requirements, vvhich includes an in-kind match of an amourit equal to.or greater
thari $1'11,308 for each State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024 & 2025 ,

6. Modify Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 7. Subsection 7.1, to
read:

7.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, in accordance with the approved budget line items specified in
Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-6 Budget Amendment #2."

7. Add Exhibit. B-5 Budget Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and .incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

■

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS.2020-OCYF.05-COURT.01-A02 Page 1 of3 Date
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OocuSign Envelope ID: C7PaAF86-19CO-4l93^737-02SBDB1FlB43

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective June 30,2023, Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/1/2023

Date

—DocuSl0<M4Dy;

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.

2/1/2023

Date

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.
-0*ciiSiBfl«4 By;

nrr

Title: President/CEO

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire. Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2020-OCYF-05-COURT-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2/10/2023

Date

—Docu3ign*tf by;

iu/jjtuMiieu..

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: j (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE .

Date Name:
Title:

Court Appoinled Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2020-OCYF-OS-COURT^I -A02 Page 3 of 3
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LorlA. S5IUMRC

CeoiBlntoacT

jMcpk C. Rlbtan, Jr.
DImtor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIM

DEPAATMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES.

D/yiS/O/VFOJt C///LDJi£A, YOUTH Sl FAMILIES

119 PLeASANTSniECr. CONCORD. NH 033C1.38SY

603.271^91 I.8004S2434S Eli 4491 ■

Pii:609.27M719 TOD Accm: 1-SOO-795-2964 ww«.dbhs.nl).cov

March 26. 2021 .

Hts Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

. Authorize the Department of Health end Human Services. Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Court Appointed Special Advocates of
New Hampshire. Inc. (Vendor #156690), Manchester, NH for the continued provision of a
statewide training program and education opportunities for court appointed special advocates and
guardians ad litem, by exercising a contract renewal option by incie^ing the price limitation by
$52,130 from $56,744 to $108,674 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to
June 30, 2023 effective July 1, 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.
100% Federal Funds.

The origina) contract was approved by Governor and Council on July'31. 2019, Hem #26.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021; and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authorHy.to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances.between, state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

OS-96-42-421010-29600000 HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: HUMAN
SERVICES. CHILD PROtECTION. ORG'L LEARNING & QUALITY lUPRVMT

Stale

Fiscal
Year

Class I

Account .
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

'^(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

.Budget

2020 067-500557
Provider Training
Educatiori Contract

42106015 $26,372 ' $0 $28,372

2021 067-500557
Provider . Training
Education Contract

42106015 $28,372 $0 $28,372

2022 087-500557
Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015 $0 $26,065 $26,065

2023 067-500557
Provider Training
Education Contract

42106015 $0 $26,065 $26,065

Total $66,744 $62,130 $108374

Tb( Dtportnunlof Htaith ond Humon Strjiett'hHutM ittojoincommunilictond (omiUa
in providing opporiunttiea for tilixtiu lo ochUvo htollh ond in^eptndtntt.
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Hto Excellency. Governor Chrt»topher T. ̂ nunu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2 ^

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 1 SO requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing statewide training programs and
educational opportunities for court appointed special advocates and guardians at litern In New
Hampshire.

Approximately 3,200 individuals will be served from July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2023.
.  Court Appointed Special Advocates is a statewide network of programs working with court

appointed special advocates and guardians ad litem for children Involved wtth the child welfare
system. The court appointed special advocate volunteers are appointed by judges to advocate
for the best Interest-of children who have experienced abuse or neglect. Volunteers remain
involved with the children until the case is closed and the child is placed in a safe, permanent
home. For many children who have experiertced abuse or neglect, their court appointed special'
advocate volunteer wlll be the one constant adult presence in their lives. Training and educational
programs are necessary for Individuals who represent those children's best Interest through the
arduous processes of the legal and social servioes systems.

The Department will continue monitoring the effectiveness of the Contractor end the
delivery of servioes required under this agreement usirig the foilowir>g performance measures:

•  The riumt>er of CASA staff and volunteers who receive training.

•  The total numbers of hours of training provld^.

•. Training evaluation results.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for lip to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties arxf Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the best Interest of New
Hampshire children may not be properly represented, and the Department may not be able to
meet the Title IV-E functional training requirements that include pra-service and in-service
training, as well as on-going educational opporlunities to court appointed special advocates.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.658, FAIN #2201NHFOST. FAIN #230tNHFOST.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be r^uestedjo support this pi^ram.

Respectfully submitted,

m
Uori A.lShibiriet1e
Commissioner



Docusign Envelope 10: C216B4C1-0B95-4B0F-AF27-73234368034E

OocuSJgn Envelope lO: 7A43a5tA.BOOO-«704-eOC6-FA2StFAl5A73

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01

This Amendment to the CASA Training Partnership contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State' or 'Department') and Court Appointed
Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. (the Contractor").

■  WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31. 2019 (item #26). the Contractor agreed to pei^onri certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain.sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Pfovisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language., Section 2. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon wriRen agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor.and Executive Council: and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOVy THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree 16 amend as follows;

'  1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: '

June 30.2023. • ■

2. Forrh P-37, .General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$108,874.

3. Modify Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 2. to read:

2. This Agreement Is funded with 100% Federal Funds from Foster Care Tiile IV-E_ award on
10/2021 by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families. CFDA #93.658. FAIN #2201NHFOST. FAIN #2301NHFO$T.-

4. Modify Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payrhent, Section 3, to read:

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the sen/ices in Exhibit A; Scope of Services, In compliance
with funding requirements, which Includes an in-kind match of an amount equal to or greater

i  than $76,710 for each State-Fiscal Year.

5. Modify Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 7. Subsection 7.1. to :
read:-

7.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fuinilment of this Agreement, in accordance with the approved budget line items specified in
Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-4 Budget Amendment #1.

6. Modify Exhibit 8. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment Sectbn 7, Subsection 7.6, to read:

7.6 In lieu of hard cxipies. all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
r. • to OCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services •
129 Pleasant Street

.  Concord. NH 03301

7. Add Exhibit B-3 Budget Amendment #1, which is aRached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-4 Budget Amendment #1, which Is aRached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

■ /—01

AiC
Coon Appointed Special Advocales of Arhendmenl #1 Contractor Initials.
New Hampshiro, Inc.

SS-2020.0CYF.05-CdURT-Ol-A01 Page 1 ol3 Oato
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This /ynendment shall be effective July 1. 2021 uppn the date of Governor and .Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/1/2021

Date

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.

Name; loseph e. Ribsain, jr.

Oi rector

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire! Inc.

4/1/2021

Date

AU/tifl. SttAjl:

Name; Marcia'sfnk
Title: . President ceo

Court Appoinied Special Advocates of
New Hampshire, Inc.

SS-2020-OCYF-0S-COURT-01 AOt

Amendrnenl tt\

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been-reviewed by this office, is approved as to form; substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/2/2021 I
Date ■ NartT^. pinos | ̂

Attorney ' .

I hereby certify that the foregoing Anfiendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Court Appointed Special Advocates of Amendment
New Hampshire, inc.

SS.2020-OCYF-05-COURT-0t.A0l PageOofS
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, Jeffrey A. Meyen

CommLulentv

JgMpb £• Ribtin. Jr.
Wrceigr

JUL09*l9.Pn 2:59 OAS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiOrf FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

119 PLEASAra STREET. CONCORD. NH 0330I08S7
603-37I-44SI I-8004S2-334S EiL 4451

Fti: 603-271-4729• TDD Accin: I-SOO.735-2964 www.dhhj.nh.joV

July 1.2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Divisjon of Children. Youth
and Families, to enter into a sole source agreement with Court Appointed Special Advocates
of New Hampshire, Inc. (Vendor #156690). 138 Coolidge Avenue. Manchester, New
Hampshire 03105, to provide a statewide training program and education opportunities for
court appointed, special advocates and guardians ad lilem, in an amount not to exceed
$56,744. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2021.
100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in
State Fiscal Year 2020 and State Fiscal Year 2021. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without Governor and Executive
Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29600000 HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: HUMAN
SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, ORG'L LEARNING & QUALITY IftrtPRVMT

State

Fiscal

Year ■

Class/Object Title Activity
Code

Amount

2020 066-500M3 Employee
Training

42106015 $28,372

2021 066-500543 Employee
Training

42106015 $28,372

Total $56,744
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu . .
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Contractor. Court Appointed Special
Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.. is the only agency providing these services on e statewide
basis.

The purpose of this request is to' provide statewide training programs and educational
opportunities for court appointed special advocates and guardians at litem in New Hampshire.
Approximately 3.200 individuals will be served from August !. 2019 through June 30. 2021.

This agreement aligns with the Title IV-E functional training requirements that include
pre-service and in-service training, as well as on-going educd,tional opportunities to court
appointed special advocates in the state of New Hampshire.

Court Appointed Special Advocates is a statevnde networit of programs working with
court appointed special advocates and guardians ad litem for children involved with the child
wejfare system. The court appointed special advocate volunteers are appointed by judges to
watch over and advocate for abused and neglected children, to make sure they don't get lost
in the overburdened legal and social service system or languish in inappropriate group or
foster homes. Volunteers remain involved vyith these children until the case is closed, and the
' child is placed in a safe, permanent home. For many abused children, their court appointed
special advocate volunteer will be the one constant adult presence in their lives. Training and
educational programs are necessary to represent these children's best interest through the
arduous pro^ss of the legal and social services systems.

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. has been providing these
services successfully to its volunteers and staff for several years, and given its past
performance and plans for ongoing Improvement to the training program, the Division for
Children. Youth and Families fully support this agreement.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of
services required under this agreerhent using the following performance measures;

The number of CASA staff and volunteers who receive training.

The total numbers of hours of training provided.

Training evaluation results.

As referenced in Exhibit C-l, Section 2 of this contract, the parties have the option to
extend contract :services for -up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the best interest
of New Harnpshire children may not be properly represented, and the Department may not be
able-to meet the training requirements mandated for Title IV-E funding.

Area Served: Statewide.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and thie Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3 •

■  Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.658 Federal Agency Departftient of Health and Human Services, Administration
for Children and Familie's, Foster Care Title l\/_E RECOVERY, FAIN #1901NHFOS.

In the event that Federal funds are no longer available. General-funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Je irey A. Meyers

Commissioner

Trio Oopdrtmdnt olHoaUh ond Human Sorvlcos' Mission Is to Join communilias and fam'b'es
in providing opportunities for ciUzons to achieve health and Meperydence
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

'Subject; CASA Traifiinp Purinefchio (SS.2Q2(>.QCYF.Q5.CQURTt

agreement

The Siflte of New Hsmpshlre end the Ccntrectof hereby muiuelly egree u follows:
GENERAL FROVISIQNS

1. IDENTIFICATION. •
l.t Siiie Agency Name

Dcp&nmeni of Heelih &. Hurhoh-Services

1.2 Stite Agency Address

I29Pleu&ntSirtei

Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor rvame

Coun Appointed Special Advocotu of New Hompshire. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

138 Coolidge Avenue

PC Box 1327
Manchester NH 03105-1327

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 626U600

1.6 Account Number

05-095-d2-42t0l0-29600000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2021

1.8 Price Limitation
V

S56.744

1.9 Contracting OfTieer for Slate Agency

Nathan D. White

1.(0 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271.9631

Conlricior ure 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

t.t3 Actfnowledgement: State of . County of MilKVmroMcyk

On fe|yyi<feeforc the undersigned ofTicer, personally appeared the person identined in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and 'acknowledged that s/he executed (his document in (he capacity indicated in block
1.12. . • •

I.l3.t Signatureof Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

>•
(Seal)

1.(3.2 Name andTitleof Notary or Justice of the Peace

e-s-^o

1.14 Slate Agency Signalt I.IS Name and Title ofSto'te Agency Signatory

.16 Ap^lpvi^y^the N.H. Department of Adminijtroiion, Division of Personnel (i/eppJiceble)

By: . Director. On:

1.17 ApprevalJ^y the Attorney General (Form. Substance ind EsKutlon)

l.t8 Apgfbval b/ihc Covernor and CseculiveCouncil

By; On:

I'oge I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OFCONTRaCTOR/SERVICCS TO
BE PERFORMED. The Si&te orNewHompshtVe, sciing
ihrough the agency identified in block I.I ("State'*), engages
contractor identiHed in block 1.3 ("ContraciOf') to perform,
and (he Coninictor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more panlculurly described In the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Servicei").

3. EFFECTIVE OATE/COMPLETlON Of SERVICES.
3.1 Norwithsitnding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and ail obligations of the parties hercunder. shall
not become efreciive until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement ("Effective Dare ).
3.2 If t)te Contractor commences the Services prior to the •
Effective Date, all Services performed.by the Conintctor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does'not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified iri block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Norwiihstanding any -provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including
without limiifliion. (he continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no eveni.shati Ihe State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event bf a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right-to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving Ihe Contractor notice of such termtnaiioti. The State .
shall riot be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identined in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 Thecomroci price, rrieihod of paymem. and terms of
payment are Identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBITS which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rttmbursemeni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be (he only and the complete
compensation to (he Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractorolhcr than the contract
price.
5.3 The State reserves the right l6 offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.

5.4 Norwiihstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. In
no event shall the iota) of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the f^ricc Limitation set forth in block
I.I.

4. COM PLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with ail siaiuies. laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any oMigotion or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
law). In addition, the Contractor shall comply with ell
applicable copyrighi laws.
6.2 During the term of (his. Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or naiionDl origin and will take "
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agree n)cni is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with ell the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by (he
regulations of the United States Depanmeni of Labor (41 ,
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any ofthe
Contractor's books, records and accounts'for the purpose of
asccnaining compliance with all rules, regulations end orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall Bi its own expense provide all .
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to.perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable

- laws.

7.2 Unless OJhcrwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a perW of six (6) months aller the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subconiracior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who.is materially involved in (he '
procurement, administration or performarKC of this .
Agrecmerii. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.) The Conifociing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's represcniotlvc. In the event ,
of any dispute concerning (he interpixtation of (his Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Toge 2 of 4
Contraciorlnltials:.

Date:.
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8. EVENT or OErAULT/RCMEDlCS.
8.1 Any one or more or the following ecu or omisstoru of (he
Concrecior ihell consiuute an eveni of defiuti hcreunder
("EvenlofDefauli"):

8.M failure to perform the Services totisfactorilyoron
ic^edule;

8.1.2 foilurc to submit any repon required hcreunder; and/or
6.1.3 failure to perform any other eoveneni, lerm or condition
of this ̂ grtemeni.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of (he folloxving aeitons:
8.2.1 give (He Conirnetor a written notiec specifying the Eveni
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absettcc of a greater or lesser speciftcaiiort of time, thiity (30)
days from the dote of the notice; and If the Event of Default is
not timely remedied,.terminate this Agreement, efTeciive two
(2) days after giving the Controctor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the lionuact price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until iuch time as .the State
deicrmmcs that the Contractor has cured the Event of Dtfauli

shall never b.e paid to the Contractor;
' 8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreernent as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word ''data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, rcporu.
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, dmwings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, leners, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether ftnished or unHnished.

9.2 Ail data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shell be returned lo'ihe State upon demand or upon .
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confideitiiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of (he State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event ofan early termination of
this Agrecmeni for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
GfTicer, itot later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Terminarion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the conireci price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termirution

Report shall be identical to those of any'Firtal Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement (he Contractor is in all
respects on independent contractor, end'is neither on agent nor
an employee of(he State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emotumenit provided by the Stale to its employees.

i 2. assicnm ent/oelecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or oiherwite transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen consent of
(he N.H. Dcpanmeni of Administreitve Services. None ofihe
Services shall be subcomrscted by the Comrocior without the
prior wrinen consent of the Siaie.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Coniracror shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Siaie, iisofTicers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, arid any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assened against the State, its oncers
and employeet. by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of(or which may be
claimed to arise oui of) (he acts or omissions of (he
Cohtracior. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
comairved shall be deemed .to constitute a woiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity it hereby
rvscrv^ to the Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive (he termination of this Agitement.' • ..

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shell, m its sole e.tpense, obtain end .
maintain in force, end shall require any subconirecior or
assignee to obtain and mainuin in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance egsinsi all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts.
of not less than S250.000 per claim arid $2,000,000 per
occurrence; end

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to tubparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the ̂ ole replacement value of the property..
14.2 The policies described insubporagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsemenu approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by (he N.H. Depanmeht of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In the State of New
Hampshire.
14.3 The Controctor shall fumish to (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiricaie<s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
idcntircd in block 1.9, or his or her tuccessoV. ceriincetc(t) of
insurance for all renewBl{s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifleen (IS) days prior-io.ihe
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certincaic(i) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. Each

Faxe 3 of 4
Conlnicior Iniliair;

Dale:

HI:
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cenificue(t) of insunnce shell eonuin t clause rtquinng the
insurer io ehdeevor to provide the Conuecting Onker
identined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less thin ten
(10) da)rs prior wrinen notice of cancellaiion or modincation
of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COM PENSaTION.

15. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requircmenis of N.H. RS A chapter 211 - A
("Woriers* Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
rcquircmcnu of N.H. RSA chapter 211 -A, Coniracior shall
maintain, and.require any tubconiraetor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of WorSccn' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to

ttrtdertake pursuant to this AgrMmeni. Coniracior shall furnish
the Contracting Officer tdeniificd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the manner ■

described in N.H. RSA chapter 2SI "A and any applicable
rencwal(s) thertof, which shall be attached artd are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for paynKm of any Workers' Compensation
premiumsor for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New'Hampihirc Workers*
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No foiiurt by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afrcr any Event of OcfauU shall
be deemed a woivcr of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any funher or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Conirtccor.

i 7. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly deliver^ or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mad, postage prepaid, in a United
Steles Post OfTice eddres.sed to the panics at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. amendment. This.Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instniment in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the (^vemor and
Executive Council of the Sute of New Hampshire. '

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,

this Agreement shall be construed in.occordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, end Is binding upon end
inures to the benefit of the panics end their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement it
the wordiiigchosen by (he panics to express their mutual
intent, end no rule ofcorisiruciion shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD Parties. T>e panics hereto do not Intend to
benefit any'thirtl panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

31. headings. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way te held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, ccmstruciion or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set fonh
in the inaehed EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBI LiTYi In the event any oftbe f^vistoni of
this Agreement ore held by a coun of competent jurltdiciion to
be contrary to any sii'te or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
efTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number ofcoumerpans, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understandihg-between the panics, and supersedes all prior
Agreements end understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 fif 4
Contractor Inii'iels:

Oeic:
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Kew HampsMre Oepftrtmotit of Hoatth and Human Sorvlcoo
CASA Training Partnarahip

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES

1.1 The Conuacto; will submit a detailed description of the language assistarKe services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficienpy to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or sen/ices v/ithin ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2 The Contractor agrees that,, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire (NH) Ger>eral Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Senr.ice
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so.as to achieve
compliance.therewith. .1.3.

'  1.3 For the purposes of Ihis Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as
a Contractor. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1 The Contractor shall provide^ongoing training programs and educational opportunities
that are delivered and evaluated by Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA).

'  which align with federally outlined and Division, of Children. Youth, and Families
(DCYF)«approved functional training requirements.

2.2 Pro-Service Traihirig

2.2.1 The Coniractor shall provide a minimum of forty (40) hours of pre-service
tralnirig to CASA guardians ad (item (GALs) in order that services within the'
child protection system and in juvenile court are provided in ari effective and
thorough manner.;

2.2.2 The Contractor shall ensure the core training consists of curriculum developed
by the National CASA Associalton wilh revisions thai comply with;

2.2.2.1 New Harnpshire Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA). 169-C-Chik)
Protection Act.

2.2.2.2 System-Wide Guardian Ad LItem Standards of Practice Rules.

2.2.2.3 General'couri and child protection practice.

2.2.3 The Contractor shell ensure curriculum Is delivered by qualified 'and trained
CASA of New Hampshire staff in coordination with an experienced professional
in the area of the juvenile court and child protection systems, which may
Include but is not limited to;

2.2.3.1 Judges.

2.2.3.2 Attorneys.

2.2.3.3 Foster parents.

2.2.3.4 Child protection workers.

SS-2020-DCYF-05-CASAT Exhibli A Contmaor

Coun Appointed Special Advocoles Pegoiora Oete:
of New Hampshire, inc.

/]f^
9f Initials: L
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New Hsmpshlro Departmont of Hoatth and Human Sorvlces
CASA Trelntng Partnership

Exhibit A

2.3 In-Senrice Training

2.3.1 The Contractor shall provide training to OCYF staff on CASA!s role in child
protection cases as part of the OCYF Core Academy Training, as requested,
ensuring curriculum includes, but Is not limlied to;

2.3.1.1 Child Protection System; An overview of the NH child protections
system including the -role ot the OCFY in the investigation,
assessment and remediation of child abuse artd neglect cases. Child

• abuse and neglect laws and protocols Including mandated reporting;
system' coordination; Division Practice Model lEvldence-Based
Practices. includir>9 but not limited to Solutlor\ Based Casework; end
the rights of parents.

2.3.1.2 Juvenile Court System; An overview of the New Hampshire juvenile
court system including the Family Court. District Court, Probate
Court. Superior poort. and the NH Supreme Court.

2.3.1.3 The roles and responsibilities of CASA/GALs in the development and
preparation of case plans as well as participation In Judicial
determinations, home-studies, .case management and supervision.

13.1.4 Understanding of family dynamics and communication, and family-
centered practice that includes activities to strengthen families.

2.3.1.5 Child development and the impact of abuse and neglect on normal
child development as well as visitation and the effects of separation,
grief and loss.

.. 2.3.1.6 Cultural competency, awareness; diversity, and inctusiveness as it
relates to children, youth and families.

'  2.3.1.7 The effects ot domestic violence and the Impact on. children, co
occurrence of domestic violence; child abuse and neglect, and
referral to services.

2.3.1.8 Permanency planning options including, but not limited to. non-
removal supports, foster care, kinship care and adoption.

2.4 • .On-Going Training

2.4.1 The Contractor shall ensure on-going training consists of twelve (12) hours of
annual on-going education offered throughout the state that complies with
CASA of New Harrtpshire Professional Development Standards and National
CASA Association Program standards and Guardian ad litem standards.

2.4.2 .The Contractor shall ensure on-going training Is available in a variety of
methods including, but not limited to;

.  2.4.2.1 CASA monthly in-service training.

2.4.2.2 CASA full day in-service training, held in spring or fall.

2.4.2.3 CX:yF Worlrshops that include Core Academy and ■ advanced
trainings that are available to child protective workers, whic^

SS-202O-OCYF.O5-CASAT ExhbliA Conimctor InlUah;
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also' be orfered (o CASA staff and GALs on a space available basis.

2.4.2.4 Electronic e-learning modules.

-2.4.2.5 Approved conferences including, but not limited to;

2.4.2.5.1 National CASA Association Conference;

2.4.2.5.2 AG's Conference on Child Abuse end Neglect; and

2.4.2.5.3 OCYF Annual Conference.

2.4.3 The Contractor shail ensure training topics include, but .are not be limited to:

' 2.4.3.1 Case connections In child welfare.

2.4.3.2 Advanced domestic violence and the impact on children.,

2.4.3.3 Adoption services, case planning and the role of the CASAfGAL.

2.4.3:4Adolescent service plannirtg and supporting post^foster .care
employment options.

2.4.3.5 Advanced coun procedures and the role of the CASA/GAL in the child
■  • welfare system.

2.4.3.6 Advanced topics in NH child protection statutes.

2.5 the Contractor shall participate In the Department's Leadership in Learning and
Collaboration (LILAC).'

3. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

3.1 The Contractor shall provide twelve (12) to fourteen (14) qualined training program
staff, each of whom have the following qualifications:'

3.1.1 A bachelor's degree:

3.1.2 Experience with training;

3.1.3 ■ Familiarity with the CASA of New Hampshire training curriculum; and

3.1.4 A minimum of two (2) years of experience working .with voluntiBers. agencies,
-and organizations v^o work with families and chHdren In social service
settings.

4. PROGRAM OUTCOMES AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES
4.1 The Contractor shall conduct a DCYF-approved quality assurance evaluation to

ensure the following:

4.1.1 100% of CASA volunteers will demonstrate an understanding of the child
protection system in NH.

4.1.2 100 % of CASA volunteers will demonstrate an understanding of their role In
ensuring the best interest of the child.'

4.1.3 100% of CASA volunteers will demonstrate ah understanding of the concepts
and practices associated with safety, permanency and well-being.

- 4.2 The'Contractor shall meet with the Bureau Administrator and Training Adminl^^r of
SS.202O-OCYF4)5-CASAT ExNtMl'A Conlractw Inilialj;

^dminl^^

Court App^nled Special AdvocfltBS Date:
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the Bureau for Organizatior>al Learning and Quality .Improvement (BOLQI) to discuss
the findings of the quality assurance evaluation and draft a plan for program
Improvements that Includes but is not limited to:

4.2.1 ideniifted areas for improvement.

4.2.2 Steps to be taken to improve the GAL program through CASA of New
Hampshire.

4.2.3 Re-pvaluation of the progrem..

6: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

5.1 The Contractor shall provide a quarterly report to the Bureau Administrator and
Training Administrator of the Bureau for Organizational Learning and'Quality
Improvement (BOLQI) v^thin ftfteen (15)'days of (he completion of the quarter, which
shall include but is not limited to:

5.1.1 The number of CASA staff and volunteers trained;

5.1.2 The number of hours of training;

5.1.3 Types of training provided;

5.1.4' Training evaluation results; and

5.1.5 The Contractor's costs incurred for providing trainings as described in this
agreement..

5.2 The Contractor shall provide an annual report no later than August 30th of each
contract year that summarizes information collected from the interim reports requested
In Section 5.1 which Includes an analysis of trends in service.

6. CONFIDENTIALITY

6.1. The Contractor shall comply with the confidentidiity provisions of NH RSA 170-G:
8-3. All information regarding the Orvision's clients, client families, foster families,
and other involved individuals that the Contractor may learn is strictly conndential
and shall not be. discussed with anyone except DCYF personnel in the
performance of contracted services.

SS-202O-OCYF-OS^SAr Exhibit A ContrBCtor (nitiab
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with federal funds as follows; 100% federal funds from
Department of Health and Human Services, Admiriistration for Children and Families,
Foster Care Title IV'E , Catalog of Federal pomestic Assistance (CFOA} #93.658,
Federal Award Identification Number Federal Award Identificailon Number (FAIN).
#1901NHFOST.

3. The Contractor agrees lo provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, v^ich Includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to or greater than $76,710 for State Fiscal Year (SFVj 2020, and $76.710 for SFY
2021.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the required match iri Section 3, above, is In non-federal
contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly providing project activities and
goals as approved by the Department.

5. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of fundis that are
applicable to the funding of the services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation.. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate records to document actual
funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

6; Failure lo meet the scope .of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

7..^ Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:
I

7.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement-basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this-Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line items as specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget and Exhibit 8-2, Budget.

7.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20*^) working dPy of each month, which Identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

7.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

7.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

Cotfi Appotnic^ Spedti A4voe«i«» of EjMtfi 6 Ccntraclv InAiala
Now HampshiA), Inc
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7.5. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P'37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7:6. in lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to Heidi.YoMng@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Children Youth and Families

129 Pleasant St.

Concord. NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of,required reports or documentalion.as
identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services end in this Exhibit 8.

9. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Departmeni-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

10.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
Stale Fiscal Years, may be piade by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Court Aopoimod special AdvocffiCT of ExMMB Contractor Milaliy
Now Hflmpshit. If>c.
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Contractors Obiigeiions; The Contractor eoverianis end agrees that aD funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract ahati be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to elig&le.
Individuals and, In the furtherance of (he aforesaid covananis. tho Contractor hereby covenants'end
agrees as follows;

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted Ic determine the eligbiiity
of indfviduats such eCglbility determination shall be made in accordance whh applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2.. Time and fManhor of Ootermlnation: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
(he Department for that purposo and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by -
the Department.

3. Oocumontatlon: In addKiort to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor '
shall maintain a data Hie on each recipienl of services hereunder. which file shall include ell
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as (he
Depaitment requests. The Contractor shall fu.rnish (he Oepartrnent with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor ur>derstdnds thai ell appiicenis for service^hereunder. as well es
individuals declared ineligible heve a right to e fair hearing regarding that deiermir>a'Uon. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicanls for services sliail bo permitted to rdl out
an application form end that each applicant or re-applicant shall informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accanjar>ce with Department regulations. "

5. 'Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contrect'toaccept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the.Coniractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the peifonmance'of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. Tho Slate may lerminaie this Contract and any sub>contract or.sub-egreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of emplo^era of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or SutKConirxior.

6. Rotroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or ineny'
other document, contract or undersldnding, it is expressty understood and agreed by tho parties
hereto, that no payments win bo made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any uyfivtdua! prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
arid no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any series provided
prior to the dale on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eliglbie for such services.'

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwrthstanding anything to the contrary contained in (ho Contract, nothing
herein contained shall.be.deemed to obligate or require the Oepartrnent to purchase sorNnces
hereunder at.a rate which reimburses the Cenirador In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure (he quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by tho Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final

'  Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department sheD determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received peymer>l
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineiigibie mdividuais
or other third party funders. the .Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rales shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from eny future payment to (he Contractor the amount of any phor reimbursement in

excess of costs:

Etfilbit C - Specui Prewteldft) Contmcior irAlxls
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7.3. Demand repayment of (he exc^s paymeni by (he Con(ractor tn which even( faDure to meke
(uch repaymoAt shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is '
permined to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for el) funds peid by (he Department to (he Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such servicesei
any time durij>g the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

8. fMalntenance of Records: In addition to the eVglbilily records specified ebove. the Cooiractor
cbvenanis and agrees to mainloln the following records during the Controci Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: boolts. records, documents end other daia bvideAcIng and reflecting ell costs
and other ei^nses incurred by the Conirector in the performance of the ContracL and ell
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be'
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiemiy and
property reflect a!) such costs and expenses, and which arc aaeptabie to the Oepartmenl. end
to include, wiihoui limitation, el) ledgers, books, records, and originel evidence of costs such es
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical. enroHmeni; enendar>ce or visit records for each recipient of
ser^ces during the Contract Period, which records shall irsctude all records of cppiicetionend
eligibility (irictuding el) foims reqiwed to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
'regardir^g the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain '
payment for such services.

8.3. M^icel Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Deportment regutations.the
Cont/'actof shiali retain medical records on palienVrecipieni of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Departmenl.within 60 days after (he close ofthe
agency fiscal year. II is recommended that (he report be prepared in eccordarKe with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-13i. 'Audits of Slates. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizatrons' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Otfica (GAG standards) as
they pertain to fmarKiat compliance audits.

9.1. 'Audit end Review: Ouhng the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have access to at! reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to end not in any way in limilalion of obligations of the Contract, It la
understood end agreed by the Contreclor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audh excepllons and shall return to the Department. eO payments made under the-
Conlract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services end the Contract shajl be confidential and shall not
be disclosed'by the Contreetor, provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regutetlons of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such informeilon. disclosure imay be made to
pubfic'offidals requiring such information,in connection with their official duties end for purposes
directly connected to the edmlnistratlon of the services end ihe Conireci; end provided further, thei-
(he use or disclosure by eny party of any Informstlon concerning e recipient for eny purpose not -
directly connected with the administration of the Dapartmeht or the Contrector's responsibilities .with
respect to ()ufchesed senrices hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipiehii
attorney or guardian.

EmiQii C - Specisi Pro«(iiQn» Controdoi inlUsD,
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Notwithstanding anything to the contra/y contained herein the covenants and conditloiw contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees.to submit the fottowiiig reports at ihefellowing ■
times if requested by the Department.
11.1: Interim Financial Reports: Written interim Tmancial reports containing a datalJed descripion of

ell costs end non-aliowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
iostify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Firtancial Reports shaD be submitted on the form
designated by the oir^artment or deemed satisfactory by the Deportment

11.2. Final Report: A flnel report shaD be subminod wimin ihir^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contrecl. The Final Report shall be in a form selisfoctory to the.Oeportmeni end shell
contain a summary stalemenl of progress tovrord goals end objectives staled in theProposol
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Oepartmeni of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Conifocl end upon payment of the price limttalion
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shell terminaie. provided howaver. that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Departmenl shall disallow any expenses claimed by. the Contractor as •
costs hereunder the Department shall retain-the right,, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are d'tsallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Cfodits: AH documents, rwiices. press releases, research reports end other materials prepared
during or resulting from ihe performance of the services of the Contraci shall include ihefoJIowing
statement: •

t3.1. The preparaiioft of this (report, document eic.) was financed under a Contract with the Slate
of New Hampshire, Department of Haallh and Human Services, .with fur>ds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Departmenl of Health and Hurhan Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ail materials (wrftten. video, audio) produced or
purchased underThe contract shaO have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials •
produced, ir»cluding. but not Dmhed to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any malerials produced under the contractwHhoul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws end Rogulatlons: In the operation of any facilrtics
for providing soivices. the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county end municipal authorities and with any direclio.n of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order ot duty upon ihe contractor whh respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such fodliiy. if any governmental license o*
permit shall be required lor the opcrelion of the said facility or the performence of (he said services,
the Coriireclor will procure said license or permit, end %viU at all times comply wHh the terms er>d
conditions of each such ficense or permil. In connection with Ihe forcQOlf>g requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules,.ordars. regulations, arxf requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marsheland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building end zoning codes, by
laws and regulations. . ^

"  IS. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide on Equal Employmeni ■
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice.Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or moro and '

1C • SpedftI ProvUlvu Cant/aaiv InHUa '' h/
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mofo employeos. ii will mainlain a currenl EEOP on fJe end submil en EEOP Cartircation Form to the
OCR. certifying-that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less then $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide en
EEOP Certrfication Form to the OCR certifying K Is not required to subrhK or meinlein an EEOP. Norv
proTil organizations. Indian Tribes, and mediCBl end educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requiremeru, but are required to submit a certiTtcaUon form to the OCR to ctaim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are avaitable at: http:/Awww.ojp.usdoVabout/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency fLEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with l.im'ited English Prohciency. end resuZing egency guidance, natlonatdrtgin .
discdminatron Includes diocrimtnation on the basis of limited EngKsh proficioncy (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Sale Streets Act of 1968 end.TZie VI of the Civil'
Rights Act of 1964. Contrectors must taite reasorxable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Wh'istleblower Protections: The
■  following shall apply lo all contracts that exceed the Simpiined Acquisition Threshold as defmed in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

CONTOACTOft Employee WMisnEBLanrER Rk>kts ako Requirep^ewt to inform Employees of
Whjstublower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract end employees working on this contract will be subject to the whislleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot proigram on Contractor employee whislleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the Natronal Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 20l3 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3,908.

(b) The Contraclor shall infonm its employees in writing. In the predominant lar>guage of the wodtforco,
of employee whislleblower rights arvJ protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.906 of the Federel Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shell insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in ell'
subcontracts over the simptified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain h'eatlh care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but (he Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accountability lor the funclion(s]. Prior lo
subcofitracting. (he Conirector shell evalueile Ihe subcontraclor's ebility lo perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreernent that specifies ectivities and reporting
responsibiliiies of the subcontractor end provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sandions if
•the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same cpni^ual
conditions as the Contractor end (he ConUector is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with (hose cor>ditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19. T Evaluate (he pros'peciive subcontractor's abiiiiy to perform the activities, before delegating
the funcfon

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities end how sanctions/revoeetion wID be managed if the subconirector's
performance is not ed^uate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on en or>ooing basis

corivii
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•19.4. Provide 10 DHHS On annual Bcheduie'Wentftying ail subcontractora. delegated funciionsand
■  responsibilities, and when the subconifacior's performance will be reviewed

19.5. > DHHS shall, at Ks discretion, review end approve alt subcontracts.

■  It the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for impfovement ere Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.t. COSTS: Shan moan those direct end-indiracl items of expense determined bythe Dopedmenl
to be eDowabie end reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles esteblished
ineccordancesvlih.staidandfederai iaws. regulations, rules and orders. '

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shell mean the document submitted by the Contractor on'o
form or forms required by the Depertment and containing a description of the servicos and/or
goods to be provided by the Conireclor in eccordance with the lerms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost end sources of revenue for eech service to bo provided
under the Coniracl.

20.4. UNIT: For each service thafihe Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall
mean thet period of time or lhal specified ecUviiy determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibil B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAt-ZSTATE t-AW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
'' policies, etc. are refcrrcd lo in the Cbntracl. the said reference shall be doemed to mean

all such lews, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time lo time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds pro*^ed to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant eny existing federel funds available for these services.

ExhlbllC-Sp«OliProv(sJon» CorU/idor IrAI
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.  REVISIONS TO STANQARD CONTRACT LAHQUAGE

1. Revlslone to iForn* P.37, General Provisions

1.1. Sggtlon a CoftdHlonal Nature of Aoraement. is reotacod at follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREeMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemonl to the coritrary. ell obligations of the State
hereunder. Inctud<r»g vMlhoul Gmitatiori. the continuance of poymenls. In whole or in perl,
under this Agreement ere coruingcnt upon continued epproprieiion or availability of funds,
indudlno any subsequent cbwfles lo the appropriation or avaiiebDIiy of funds effected by
any state or faderei legislailve or executtvo action thai reduces, elirnmotes. or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or ovBtlsbllity of funding for this Agreement end tr^ Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope^of Services, in whole or in part. In no evenly shall Ihe
Slate bo liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In

■  the event of a reduction, lermination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
Slate shall have the right to wilhhoW payment until such funds become aivailable. if ever.
The State; Shan have the right to reduce, lerminaie or modify'services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving ihe Conlractor notice -of such reduction, lerminalion or
modification. The. Stale shall not be reeuired to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Accounifs) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or-ony other account In the event funds ere reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section lO. TBrmination. is emer^ded by adding the foOosving language;

10.1 The Stale may tcrminata the Agreemenl ot any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving.the Conlractor written notice (hat the State is exercisirtg its
option to terminete the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early terminat'ion. the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit, to the State a Transition Plan for.services'under the
Agreemenl. Including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs'.

10.3 The Contrector shall. fuOy cooperate with the State end shall promptly.provide detailed
infomnation lo support the Trensillon Plan inclddii^, but nol limited to, any. information or
data requested bythe State related lo the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and' shall prov'ide ongoing communicalion end revisions of the Transition Plan' to lha'State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including bul nol limited lo clients receiving
services under the Agree.meni are trensitioned to having- services delivered by another
entity Including coniracted providers or the Stale, Ihe Contractor shall provide.a prwess for
uninterrupted deCivery of ser\^s in (he Transition Plan.-

10.5 The Contractor shall establ'ish a method of notifying clients end other affected indiv'iduais
about Ihe (r8nsitlon..The Conlractor shall include the proposed cornmunications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described above.

2. Ronowai

2.1. Tha Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent u^n sellsfectory del'very of services, evailable funding, written agreement of the
parties and .approval of the Governor and Executive Coundl.

E4)Ibt( C-t - Re«ts>oosrE««p(lort} lo Siindord Coi%tnc( LinguOQe ConUactv inU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUQ-FREe WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section').3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prosnsions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free WoAplace Act of tew (Pub. L. 10(W90. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el u<\.). and further agrees to have the Contrdctor's represeniative. as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Cerkeral Provisions execute thofoOcwir>g Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ♦ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This ccrtificalion is required by the regulations implementing Sections SlSl-5160 of the Orug-Free
WoAplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S:C. 70i el seq.). The January 31.
1.969 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grsntees end sub^
contrectors). prior to award, that they wfll maintain a drug-free worttplace.- Section 3017.630(c) of the •
regulation provides that a grantee (end by inference, sub^rantees and sub-conlractqrs) that is a Stale
may elect to rneke one certification to the Department in each federel fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certrficetion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, susponsibn or
termination of grants, or govamment vixda suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
sand it to;

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wfll conliriue to provide a drug-free worltplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, disinbution,

dispensing, possession or use of e controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the aciions that will be taken egainsi employees for violation of such
prohbhlon;

1.2. Establishing en ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the wortcplace:
1.2.2. Th'e granlee^s.policy of mainloining a drug-free wortiplace;
1.2.3. Any evailebie drug counseling, rehebilitetlon. end employee assislance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the worttptace;
1.3. Making it e requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paregraph (a);
1.4. Notifying-the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the slatennont; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for e violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five celendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wiihin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving ectual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tWe. to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convictefd employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhiDll 0 - CenXIcatldn ree«rdtng OruS FrM Vefldoxlnlttati
Woncplict R*qutrm«rtti

cuo«sn ion) ^ o' 2



Docusign Envelope ID: C216B4C1-OB95-4B0F-AF27-73234368034E

OocuSIgn Envelope 10; 7A438MA-BOO(H704-«OC6-FA28lFAISA73

Now Hompohlro Doportmont of Hoattfi and Human Sorvlcoa
Exhibit 0

haa deaignaied a contra! point for (he receipt of &uch notices. Notice shafl Include the
Ideniificaiion numberfs) of each affected erenu

t.6. Taking one of the fonowing actions, within 30 celcndar days of receivlAg notice under
subparegraph 1.4.2. with respect to any ennpioyee who is .60 convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to ar>d including .

'  termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973. as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfadorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabililaiion program approved for such purposes by e Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

1.7. Mahir>g e good feltn effort to conilnue to melntein a dryg*froo worhpleco through
implemeniellon of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3. 1.4. 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done In
connedion wiih the sp^ific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (I'st each tocetion)

Check □ H (here ere workplaces on file thai ere not jdenlified here.

Vendor Name:

Title

E;e)btl 0 - CsnKesttonregsnline Drug Frea
.Wgrkplsce ReqJremsni)
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CERTIRCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenlined In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
Section 31S of Public Lew 101-121'. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions oil Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisbns execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable.progrom covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Senrices Block Grant Program under Title KX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grent under Title VI •
'Child Cere Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her kn'owledge end belief, thet:

1. No Federal approphatedfurvds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of Iho undersigned, to
eny person (or ihnuencing or attempting, to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of 'Congress. an officer or employee of .Congress, or an employee of e Member of Congress in
connection wilh the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
imodiflcetion of eny Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specifc merMi.on
siib^rantee or 6ub<ontraclor}'.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any porson for
influer>cing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, o Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of-a Memtier of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative ogreeme'nt (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the urtdersigned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of (his certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, end contracts ur>der grants,
loans, and cooperetive agreements) and that oil sub-recipients-shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This ccitrficatlon Is a materiel representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this trensaction
was mode or entered into. Submission of this cert'rficatlon Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required-
certrficetion shall be sutq'ect to.e crvO perialty oI nix less than $10,000 end not more than $100.000.for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Da

ExTii&B E - CeniSutloA Rtgsrding Lobbying
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Title: -
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CERTIFICATION HEGAROINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILfTY MATTERS

The Vendor-identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmeni,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, end hjrther agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute thefollcwdng
Certification;

INSTRUCnONS FOR CERnFICATIOfy

1. By e^nlng and submitting this propose) (contraci). ine proapective primary participoni is providir>g Iho
certification sal ouf below.

2. The inability of a person to provide Ihe certification required below wiD not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If n^ssary. the prospective participant shaD submit an
explanation of why h cannot provide the certiftcialion. The certifcaticn or explanation will be '
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination v^ether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a'certification or an explanation shaD disqualify such person from pertldpation in
ihis transaction.

3. The certification in Ihis dause is a matehal representation of fad upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to.enter into this Iransaction. If I'i is later delemhined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rervfered an errorwous certification, In addition to oiher remedies
available to the Federal Governrhent. OHMS mey terminate (his iransadion for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shell provide immediate written notice to (he DHHS agency to -
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at eny time the prospeclivo primary particlpeni learns'^
.that its cerliflcatipn was erroneous when submined or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5.' The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.* •participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.' 'proposal.* and
'volunlarily ezduded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings sat out in the Defuiltions and
Coverage sections of (he rules implementing ExKutrve Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definilions.

6. The prospective primary participani screes by submitting th« proposal (corntract) that, should.the
proposed covered trensaciion be entered into, it ehal) not knowingly enter 'into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless euthorized by DHHS. .

1: The prospedrve primary participant further agrees by submitting ihis proposal that it wiO include the
clause titled 'Certrfication Regarding Debarmeni. Suspqnsion. lneligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion •

'  Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS; without modificetion. in all lower tier covorod
transactions and in eD'sortcitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participent in a covered transaction may rely upon a certificalion of a prospective.participant in a .
lower tier covered transaction thai it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certificalipn is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check theNonprocuremerit Lisi (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good failh the certification required by (his clause. The knowledge and

EjetB»n F - CertifiuOon RaoirUlng Otbvment. StepemiDo Venuof
Ane Otnir RnponiUSty Metiers
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intormatron of a participant b not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions euthorued urvfer paragraph 6 of these instnrctions. if a participant in a
covered transaction krtowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
susperxfed, detrarred. ineligibte, or voluntarily excluded from perticipation in this trensaction, in ■
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this Ironsaclion
for cause or defauft.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospectNe primery penicipent certifies to the best of its knowledge ond belief, tnot it end its

principots:
11.1. era not presently.debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

-voluntarity excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depertmeni or agency:
11.2. have r>ot within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civB judgment render^ against them for commission of fraud or a crlminet offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federpl, Slate or local)
trar^saction or a contract under a public (rertsaction; viotation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, foisificalion or destruction of
records, making falsa statements, or recekring stoien property;

11.3. are not presently indicled for otherwise crimiriaily oj civilly charged'by a governmental entity
(Federsl, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certiflcatibn: and

11.4. have not wilhin a three-year period pre^ding this applicab'on/proposal Kad one or more pubfic
t/ansections (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defauft.

12. Where the prospective pr^ry perticipanl Is unable to certify to any,of the statements in ihb
certiftcation. such prospe^ive participant shell ettach en explanation to this proposal (contrecl).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ^
13. By signing and submining (his lower tier propose! (contract), the prospective lower tier participent. as
'  defined in 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief lhal it end its principeis;
'  13.1. are rwt presently debarred, suspended, proposed for.debarment. dedved ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depertmeni or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participent shall enach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participani further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Trensactions,' without modifcatlon In ail low.er tier covered
iransections end in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

Date

OlS.
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CERTIFICATION OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEOERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH'BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLE BLOWER PROTECTIONS

the Vendor Ideniified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by sigr^iure of the Conlracior-s
reprcscnlatf^ as ideniified in Sections 1.U end 1.12 oIlhe GenemI Provisions, to execute the following
c<^caiion:

Vendor win comply, and wiO require any subgranleesor subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
fodors) nontfcscrimlnslion requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Conl/ol ond Safe Slreels Act of 19Sfl (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibllt
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminaling. either in employment practices or in
the dcIfvcrY of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nelionel origin, end sex. The Act
requires certairi rwipienls to produce an Equal Empbymont Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U:S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
•refereftce. the civil rights obligaiioni of iho Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute ere prohibited from discriminating, either in employmenl praclices or In the delivery of services or
benefils. on the basis of race, color, religion, nelipnal origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
esslslance from discriminaling on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity):
-■ the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 7M). which prohibits recipients of Fede.ral financial
assistance from discriminating on ihe basis of dispbiSty. In regard to employment ond the delivefy of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity for persons with disablliiies in employment, State and local
govemrrvent services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportaiicn;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Secllons 1681.1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on (he basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:
- ihe Age Discrimination Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07^ which prohibits discrwinalicn on the
basis of age in programs or acti^ies recewng Federal financial assistance. It does r»ot include
amplo^ent discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Juslico Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrrninolion; Equal Employment Opportunity: PoiiciBS
and procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws lor lalih-based and community
organi2ation8): Execulive Order No. 13559. which provWe fundamental principles and policy-malring
criteria.for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oepartriient of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Failh-Bosed •
Organizaiions); and Whlslleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authortiation
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pltol Program for
EnhBTKement of ConUact Empbyea Wh'isllebJower Protections, which protects employees against,
reprisal for cbrtain whislla blowing ectivilles In connedion with federal grants end contrads. •

The certificate sal out below Is a malarial rcpreaenttflan of fad upon which reliance is placed when the
egency award.s the grant. False certificalton or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspensten.of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension oi
debarmeni.

\
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In the event a Federal or Slate cooft .or Federal or State edministrative egency makes a fmding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, cotor. religion, nattonat 9'
against a recipient of funds. Iho recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civtl Rrghis, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Ser^^s. and
to the Oepartmanl of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature .of the Contractor's
represantative as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following ■
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlrocl) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vertdor Name:

ate

>7 - oiliL

Title:

Eifir&iio
Vendor tntlUb

CelKilw ne<«wu e«ra*ee rears lenewWwfcn. I'M*** e rMwe Ouw<i«er*
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CERTlFICATiON REGARDING ENViROWMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-237. Pah C • Enviromnemal Tobacco Smoke, ̂tso known as the Pro«Chiidren Act of 1994
(Act), requires (hat smoking not be permitted in any portion oi arty irtdoor facBity owned-or leased or •
contracted for by en eritity and used routinety or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
(firecUy or through State or local govemrnents. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences. (acDrties.furtded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of feciiities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. EaBure
10 comply with Ihe provisions of the law mey result In the Imposition of o civil monetery pen^y of up (o
SiOOO perdoy and/or the Imposiiion of an adminislrativo compliance order on the responsible entity. ■

The Vendor identified, in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.1l.ar>d 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificaiion: •

1. 6y signing end submitting this contract, the Vertdor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
etl applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name;

Title: ^, rsRC"

H - CeribctOan Regwtflng Vendor infU.
EnvVonmentiiTobAceo SmOie
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with (he Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually IdentlHable Health Information. 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement ar^d 'Covered Entity*
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Ptflnli'oig-

a. 'Breach* shall have (he same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal-Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning "given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal R^ulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations!

d. 'Desionated Record Set* shall have (he same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in45 CFR Seclionl64.501.

6. 'Data AQareoatidn* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the-.same meaning.as the term 'health care operations'
in-4S CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means (he Health Insurance Portability end Accountability. Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards (or Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Indtvldual* shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual* In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies.as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shell have the seme meaning as the term 'protected health
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limiied to (he-Information created or ri^etved b)
Business Associate from or'on t>ehalf of Covered Entity.

S/20U ExMWii Vendor I
HeilUi insurcnco PorttbQlyAi^
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I. 'Required bv Lav/ shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 1&4.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shell mean the.Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pah 1S4. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information .that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health iriforrnation unusaUe.
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All term's not otherwise defmed herein shaft have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, artd the
HIT6CH •

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall riot use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the sen/ices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreernent. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management end administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. . For data aggregaiion purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party (hat such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for-which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach- Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of-the PHI, to the extent II has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response lo a
request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity'to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busiriess

3rMM Ejrtbm VaMofMOih
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Associate shall fefreln from disclosir>9 the PHI until Covered Er^tity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If. the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to .
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restfictlons and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Actlvltlea of Business Associate.

0. The Business Associate shall noiify ihe Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
. after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected,
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessn^nt when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, bui not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of reMdentificatlon;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to w^om the
disclosure was-made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
' breach and immediately report the findings'of the risk assessment in writing to the

Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply wiih all seclions of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disctasure of PHI received from, ,or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA end the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e." Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere io the same
restrictions and conditions on the use end disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {!). The Covered Erftity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business,associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business assoctaies. who will be reccMngJ^H'

znoi* Exmn vendor inUaU,
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pursuant to this Agreement, wiih rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph Pi.3 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wrinen request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all

■  records. t>ooks, agrcemertts, policies end procedures relaUng to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
.Business Associate's compliance with the lem^s of the Agreement.

g: Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wlhir> ten (10) business days of receivirtg a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
arriendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Eolity lb fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with.45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any Individual requesis access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility-of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
iridividual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy end Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individualls request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable:

i. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created .or received by the Business Associate In connection wlh the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI, If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so'lpng as Business

3/2014 Vendor InKlAb
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered EnUty. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQationft of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure or PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or,
disposed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shell promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI Ihat Covered Entity has agreed lo in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

-  PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause'

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately .
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines "that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

e. Oefinltions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein. .
shall have the sarfie meaning as Itiose terms in the Privacy and Security Rule.' amended

■  from time lo lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. lo
8 iScction in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreemeni, from time lo time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no Ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on betialf of Covered Entity.

d. tntefpretatJon. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resojved
to permit Covered Entity lo comply wilh.HIPAA. the Privacy and Security R"'®- —

3/20U ' VeftOci '
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SeQfeQallo'n. .lf.anv term of,condUiori of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any*
person(s) or circumstance Is hield invalid, such irtvalidity shall not affect other lenns Or
conditions which can be given effcd virithou! the inyaW term or cofidition- to this end.the
terms and conditions of this'Exhibit I are declared severable.

'1 ■ . ' . • •
Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I ir^ardi.ng the use and disclosure of PHI, returri or
desuuction of PHI. extensions of the prot6clibns ofjthO.A'greerwanl in section (3) f. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3).e and Paragraph 13 of the

• standard terms and •conditions (P-37). .shall survive .the-lerminaUon of the Agreement.

IN WlJhJESS V^'EREOF. the.partics hereto have duly executed this .Exhibit I.

Dc^artrncht of >;teatpi:bftd.^uman;Se^ cLc ci-G

Stgn^j^Of'^ulhbhzed Representative " Signature ftf Authorized "Representative"
r  Or 'Q'hif ^—

Name of. Authorized Reprbs^matiVeName Of Authorized Representative.

Title of Authorized Represer^tatlve

■  '^ /lo/i') . . ■.
-Date

■  ..r
Title of Authorized Representative

3/20U esNwi I
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CeRtlFiCATION REGARDiNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT iFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federa) Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater lhan'S25,DOO and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive comper\s8tion and associated firsi-tier sub-grants of S25.000 or more. If the
iniliat award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
In 8ccordar>ce with 2 CFR Pen i 70 (Reponir>g Subaward and Executive Compensation informetlon). the
Oepaitment of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract awerd subject to the FFATA reponing requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of avirard

5. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/QFOA program number for grams
5. Program source
6.' Award thie descriptive of the purposo of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
$. ' Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of.the entity (OUNS d)
10. Total compensatkm and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than $0% of annual gross revenuosaro from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greaterthan $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation'infonmation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients musi submit FFATA required data by ihe end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Vendor idenUfied In Section l .3 of Ihe Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of'
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.. Public Law 109*262 end Public Law 110*252.
atKf 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the.Contractor's representatrve. as identified in Sections 1.11 and.i.i2 of the Genera) Provisions
execute the foHov^ng Ceniflcaiidn;
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as oullir>ed above to the NH Oepartmenl
of Heatth end Human Services and to comply with ell applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

\

lie Name: O tA
TiUe: —T-v /

cuOMS/um)

ExMOQ J - C«<tinc«l)on Rcgmfng ihs F«o«r8l Funding
AccouflUbOlty And TrtAtgartney Ad (FFATA) Compiance

Pegt 1 of 2

Vondof IrAiaii

Dii«Wf



Docusign Envelope ID: C216B4C1-0B95-4BOF-AF27-73234368O34E

DocuSlgn Envelope tO: 7A4385eA«00(M79«-e0C9-FA28iFAiSA73

New Hafflpshlro dapartm«nt of Heatth and Human Servlcoa
Exhibit J

forma

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed queiUons are true and accurate.

1. Th«» ntJNS number for vour entity is:

2. In your business or organization*s preceding compleled ftscal year, did your business or organization
recehra (1) 80'percent or more ol your annual gross.revenue in U.S. federal conirects, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) S2S.'000.000 or more in annual.
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgronto. and/or
cooperative agreements?

JL_NO YES

If the answer.to 02 ebove is NO. stop here

If the answer to tf2 above Is YES. please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to informatlon-about tl^ contpensellon of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(8} or 1S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(e). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Iniemel Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to d3 above Is YES, stop here

If the enswer to 03 above is NO, please answer ihe following: '

4. The names artd compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as fdlows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

ArT>ount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOMKVttOTl}
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Oefinltions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than -authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term *Breach* In section
154.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security IncWenr shall have the same meaning, 'Compuier Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Compu;ter Security Incident
Handlir^ Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential information* or 'Confideniial Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or'managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposKion is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, biit is not-limit^ to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry .(PCI), and or other sensitive and .confidential information.

4.' "End User^ means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contracl.

5. 'HIPAA' rneans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabitily Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

.6. 'Incident* means an act that potenlially violates en explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics vrllhoui the owner^s knowledge.'instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy, documents, and misrouting of-physical or electronic

vs. LbsI update 1(X09/1B EtfTWiK ContrMtor inhtat
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, irse. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
nol designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepartment of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of.the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFl.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or .'PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security nurnber. persona)
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, of when combined with other persohal or identifying information vvhich Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health information' (or 'PHI') has the same rneaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information* in the HiPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean-the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C. and amendments
thereto..

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

1. RESPONSieiUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR ..

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential lnformation.

1. The Contractor must not use. discbse, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any marvier that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confideniial Information in response to a

V5 un upene iCOSnS ejffWiK Comriacwinlilaij
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, ir> response to a
subpoena, etc.. without firs! notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if OhlHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restridions over and atwve those uses or disclosures or securtty safeguards of PHi
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by auch
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in yiolatibn of such additional
restrictions ar>d must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
tJser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
• of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm contpliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSIWISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS- data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure securd transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrvpted and being serit to and being received by email addresses of
pe^ons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Dala, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Senrice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiried ground
mail within the conllhental U.S. and when sent (o a named ir>dividudl.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices lo transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. .Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit ConfidentidI Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remoteiy transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If ErxJ User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device{s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disdosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wll
be coded for 24-hour auto^eletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is tran^'tting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ell
data must be encr^ied to prevent Ihappropriate disclosure of tnformation.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data end any,
derivative In v^atever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
. connection vtrith the seryices rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or doud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locaiions.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
af>d/Of Department confidential information for coniractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain alt electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

• 5. The Coniractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cfoud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes end
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems,- the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to end ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection.of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure:

8. Disposition

t. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

'  securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain, written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no loriger in use, electronic media containing State of
New. Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in'NIST Spiecial Publication'800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Oepartnient of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in svriting at
.time of the data destruction, and wilt provide written cenificatlon to the Department

•  upon request. The v/ritten certification will include a!l details necessary to
demonstrate dela has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. .

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy at) hard copies of Confidential Date using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified. wDhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data-erasure, also knovm as secure data wipir>g.
/  s ■ ■

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confideniial information collected, processed, managed, and/pr stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information litecyde, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage end secure dedructlon) regardless of the
-media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contraclof will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicatrie.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitorinQ capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State ot NH systems anchor
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness end education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will pe sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor v/lll worV with the Department to sign, and comply with all applicable
Stale,of New Hampshire arxl Department system access-and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining artd* maintaining access to any Department system(s). -Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPM Business Associate Agreemenl
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a.System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department.and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over (he .life of -the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Departmenl-may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the eng^ement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingty. any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundahes of the United States unless

- prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services.- mailing costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and 'security of Confiderttial Information.' and must in all other, respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. prov'rsions of the Privacy Act of 197.4 (S U.S.C. § S52a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unaulhorlz^ use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hnps://www.nh;gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of. Information Technology policies; guidelines, standards, and
procurement information.relaiing to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach- notification end. incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the emai) addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected.breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hamp^ire systems that connect to the State of Nevy Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes tdentrfied in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards, as referenced in. S^on IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from toss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at al times.

c. ensure that .laptops end other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Coritract and Individualty
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and lechnolopically secure from access by unaulhonzed persons
during duty hours -as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers', etc.}.. .

Q. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, end in en cases,
such data must be encrypted at ali times when in transit, at rest, -or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data musi be maintained, used and-

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The . Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents.and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with.the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, arid
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Inddenis;

3. Rej)ori suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core respor^e group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; end
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach -notification methods, timing, source, and' contents from among different
options, and. bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
rneasures.

Incidents' end/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359>C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

B. OHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInfOfmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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